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Highlights and Financial Calendar

BE

BAAHFESEAB1238BL(—E—TF: B
9,33087T)  HEIEE32.8%

HIGHLIGHTS

Record high profit to HK$123.8 million (2010: HK$93.3
million), an increase by 32.8%

25N HEEHERERFENIFERDEEK
=ABH1,5608 7T - RBHE1.082{8T

Profit for the year, if excluding the gain on disposal of
non-current assets held for sale of HK$15.6 million,
was HK$108.2 million

2 FEFRABIEINS6.5%F72.08 I —E—F4F :
46.0781l) - FIAKREIR B A32.08 I K AEMR £
T RAFEHNERIFRIRERE12.058110

Total dividend per share for the year increased by
56.5% to HK72.0 cents (2010: HK46.0 cents). Final
dividend of HK32.0 cents per share and a special final
dividend of HK12.0 cents per share to commemorate
20th anniversary of public listing

FEFERREAZE145%(ZF—FF : 13.9%)

Gross profit margin went up to 14.5% (2010: 13.9%)

T P R 25 B R R NN = 24.6%( — T — T F:
23.7%)

Return on average equity' increased to 24.6% (2010:
23.7%)

EBRREAREF A8 558 (=T —ZF : 74.21784)

Basic earnings per share were HK98.55 cents (2010:
HK74.21 cents)

PzET - note 1:

TIAR R RS O SRR AR N TR AR R E{E ZN . Return on average equity is defined as profit for the year attributable
ERF - KL EREFENIERDEERT to equity shareholders of the Company excluding a gain on disposal of
FRIAF Y R ERAD ISR R E(HEZRARRER)  non-current assets held for sale against the average total equity at the
FHE beginning and the end of the year

B 3% B &
Financial Calendar

REIRE R

Interim results announcement

25 November 2010

R H R A ) R H AR SR B HY

Paid date of the interim and special interim dividends

—F-TF+-_A-—+@mA
24 December 2010

EERERT

Annual results announcement

—E——FXA=1+AhH
29 June 2011

BEHERHBOER
“REEFAR

— BRI R RIRERE

Closure of register of members
— Annual general meeting

— Proposed final and special final dividends

—E——FHANARBRE_ZE——FNALH
(BEEMAXBEEAN)
—E——FAATHBEE=E——FhA+/~H
(BEEMAXEEEAN)

5 September 2011 to 7 September 2011
(both days inclusive)

14 September 2011 to 16 September 2011
(both days inclusive)

BREFAE

Annual general meeting

—T—FNALH
7 September 2011

RE N5 Bl R HARL S Ik 3% B H

Payable date of the final and special final dividends

—E——FAA-FNBHZAH
On or before 26 September 2011

RREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement

BERR
ANEREZEFS([EFEDREARES
BERRAR(ARA L) REKE QB (5HE
[(REEDBEE-—FT——F=_A=1t—HLt
FEZEFEEMRS -

MBRE

EEFRN NEEEXTEHRLELFEEE
15.62318 7T - F16.6% = 8 116.659(8 7T - E
MEIEFZE145% (ZZFE—F4F : 13.9%) ©
RSP R B EFI AAE1 2381870 » BEF
7519, 3308 7T - F132.8% © MM E & 1EH
BHENERBEERZBE1,5608 7T © A
FEGENABE1.08287T - BREARREF A
9855 (=T —F4F : 74.21584L) -

R
EEeRBRBRARE_T——F=A=+
—HIEFEZRBAKRBEEA32.08MWL(=ZF
—ZTF 2808 RABBER LT Z+AF
ZHEBRBREFRI20BUM(ZZE—F
FoE) MEFEASRNZTHKRES
f%20.0/8( = —Z4 : 18.0/81l) K& 7|
FHIR B ERS.OBI( T —TF : &)
AREBREHEE-_ZTZ——F=A=+—H
FFENE2FREAFR72.0BW(ZZE—
TF46.081L)  EAEBFE G F L
73% ° EZIRER RIS KB RIK IR
BER—_E——FNA-+RB(EH—)xK
ZRRNFR-_E——FNA+ B (EH
)EERBERBBTIAQRREL ML
A& o

RREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded turnover of
HK$1,665.9 million, up 6.6% against HK$1,562.3 million of last
year. Gross profit margin increased to 14.5% (2010: 13.9%,).
Profit attributable to equity shareholders was HK$123.8 million
compared with HK$93.3 million of last year, representing a rise
of 32.8%. Excluding a gain on disposal of non-current assets
held for sale of HK$15.6 million, profit for the year amounted to
HK$108.2 million. Basic earnings per share were HK98.55 cents
(2010: HK74.21 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK32.0 cents
(2010: HK28.0 cents) per share and a special final dividend
of HK12.0 cents (2010: nil) per share to commemorate 20th
anniversary of public listing for the year ended 31 March 2011.
Together with the interim dividend of HK20.0 cents (2010:
HK18.0 cents) per share and special interim dividend of HK8.0
cents (2010: nil) per share paid during the year, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2011 amounts to HK72.0 cents
(2010: HK46.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution
of approximately 73% of the Group's profit for the year. The
proposed final and special final dividends will be paid on or
before Monday, 26 September 2011 to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company at
the close of business on Friday, 16 September 2011.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong

The Group is delighted to have achieved growth in both turnover
and profit during the year despite sharp rise in food cost and
rent.

To sustain growth, we maintained our dedication to providing
more variety and better value products to our customers. Product
innovation and menu modification are areas that the Group has
always focused on. These factors have attracted customers who
were willing to pay higher prices and thus resulting in higher
average spending.

In terms of bolstering brand value, we continued to employ
creative strategies and advertising campaigns to capture the
public’s interest. The Group’s latest offerings were especially well
received among the young and affluent segments of the public.
More stores were refurbished based on the second generation
of the “Orange Concept”, creating a vibrant and welcoming
atmosphere for customers.

The Group’s central food processing plant located at Tai Po
Industrial Estate operated seamlessly. It has been supplying food
to over 100 stores during the year, bringing great leaps forward
to the Group’s overall efficiency. The central food processing
plant delivers various benefits, including the streamlining of
production processes and significant cost savings. The plant’s
level of automation also enables our personnel to focus on
other important areas, such as quality control, which has been
strengthened during the year.

+ ¥y X R £ X 4 ¥
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Chairman’s Statement
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RREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

With the support of our central food processing plant, process
streamlining at store level was carried out which helped to
improve productivity. Flexible scheduling shift was implemented
to further contain labour costs. The Group initiated a community
recruitment campaign specifically targeted on housewives. By
providing flexible working hours and on-the-job training, these
new recruits have become our reliable source of manpower.

With the introduction of the third phase of SAP Enterprise
Resources Planning (ERP) system, activities such as warehouse
and logistics management, material sourcing, product costing
and inventory control will be strengthened. The ERP system
enhances the Group's competitive edge, delivers higher supply
chain efficiency, improves process integration and thus resulting
in better cost control.

Mainland China

The Mainland China operations continued to progress in a stable
manner with sales rising by 10.1% for the year. The Group’s
specially tailored menus, effective pricing policy and well located
stores contributed to a solid customer base. The management
will direct more resources and efforts towards making further
inroads in this market.
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‘— Entrepreneur Of The Year
2010 China
SxLERT ¢*E

Network

During the year under review, the Group opened 9 new fast
food stores including 7 in Hong Kong and 2 in Mainland China.
As at 31 March 2011, the Group has a total of 103 stores in
operation in Hong Kong, including 97 fast food stores, 2 Buddies
Cafes and 4 specialty restaurants. In Mainland China, the Group
operates 16 fast food stores.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Being one of the leading and largest fast food operators in Hong
Kong, the Group has formed a close relationship with the people
it serves. This personal bond inspired the Group to establish its
mission of providing a pleasant dining experience and positive
image to its customers, as well as the motto: “Eat Happily, Live
Colourfully” (RISFL - JEHEEFR |).

Staying true to this mission, we have been actively involved in
a number of community events. The Group co-organised “Poon
Choi Night” (83%) with St James’ Settlement, which is a
non-governmental organisation that provides diversified services
including serving the elderly during holidays and traditional festive
seasons. The Group also took part in the “Run-up Two ifc Charity
Race 2011 ", organised by The Community Chest, which attracted
the involvement of both management and staff. As a supporting
partner to the “Hong Kong Spirit” program, all our stores served
to promote the event and as a channel for distributing the
program’s leaflet.

In recogniton of the Group’s
outstanding business performance as
well as excellent management and
service qualities, Executive Chairman
Mr Dennis Lo was awarded “The
Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the
Year China 2010” under the “Services
Category” during the year. The award
is considered one of the world’s
most prestigious business awards,
recognising entrepreneurs that have
created some of the most dynamic and
successful companies in the world.

X ¥ X B 4+ X KX ¥
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Chairman’s Statement
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RREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

To better serve the physically disadvantaged, the Group has been
renovating stores to make them more accessible. This has included
the addition of movable seats and installation of ramps, as well
as training staff on how to best serve special-needs customers.
So far, we have completed the renovation of more than 10 stores
and target to have approximately 80% of our stores in Hong Kong
to become "physically disadvantaged friendly’ by 2013.

PROSPECTS

The enforcement of the statutory minimum wage in May 2011
undoubtedly put pressure on labour cost, however, we believe
that the introduction of flexible scheduling shift will definitely
help to improve labour productivity and gradually mitigate the
margin erosion.

Mindful of the ongoing challenges that the fast food industry
faces, our objective will be to prudently manage expansion and
to achieve sustainable same store sales growth. Though rises
in operating expenses and food costs will affect the Group’s
margin, we are optimistic on our ability to alleviate such pressure
through the support of our dedicated workforce in Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

We will further capitalise on our central food processing plant
in Tai Po to better manage costs, which will be crucial as food
prices are expected to continue rising. The greater economies
of scale that the central food processing plant bring in will
translate into better overall efficiency and effectiveness with
further automation, streamlining of processes and standardisation
of production.

x S ¥y X K A+
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Aside from production, the Group will continue to introduce
innovative yet appealing menus that appeal to customers from all
walks of life. The “No MSG" series will be reinforced to capture
the health conscious customers. We will continue to introduce
the second generation of “Orange Concept” to our stores.

Across the border, the Chinese economy is expected to further
expand. To seize the opportunities that arise, we will expand our
network of stores and are confident that these new stores will
reinforce the growth momentum already achieved. Specifically,
the Group aims to increase the total number of stores to 21 by
the end of next financial year, which will witness new openings

in major cities, including Guangzhou, Beijing and Shenzhen.

Along with building our physical presence, we will enrich

product mix and fine-tune menus to meet local tastes and
to stimulate consumption and broaden our customer base in
Mainland China.

Despite mounting pressure of cost in rent, food and labour,
we believe that the Group is still in a strong position to
maintain growth. Our competitive edges, including innovative
products, efficient operations, commitment to quality, responsive
management and dedicated workforce will enable the Group to
achieve new milestones in the coming years.

APPRECIATION
| would like to take this opportunity to thank the staff for
their hard work and perseverance, and wish to also express my
appreciation to fellow directors for their valuable contributions
during the year. My gratitude extends to all of our

customers, business partners and shareholders for y\'
their unwavering support. '

AEEGD
By Order of the Board

ERE

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITERE

Executive Chairman

B8 —E——FXAZTNAH
Hong Kong, 29 June 2011
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RREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2011, the Group had total assets of HK$780.9
million (2010: HK$721.7 million). The Group’s working capital
was HK$84.0 million (2010: HK$38.3 million), represented
by total current assets of HK$334.6 million (2010: HK$278.6
million) against total current liabilities of HK$250.6 million (2010:
HK$240.3 million). Current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against total current liabilities, was 1.3 (2010: 1.2).
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$467.7 million (2010: HK$412.6 million).

Return on average equity was 24.6% (2010: 23.7 %), being profits
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company excluding a
gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2011, the
Group had bank deposits and cash amounting to HK$253.7 million
(2010: HK$210.0 million), representing an increase of 20.8%
from 2010. Most bank deposits and cash were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi.

At 31 March 2011, the Group had total bank loans of HK$41.9
million (2010: HK$45.3 million) which were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. All of the Group’s bank borrowings
were subject to the floating rate basis. The maturity of borrowings
are up to 2019 with approximately 26.0% repayable within 1 year,
57.7% repayable over 1 year but less than 5 years and 16.3%
repayable after 5 years. The unutilised banking facilities were
HK$270.6 million (2010: HK$291.0 million). The gearing ratio
of the Group was 9.0% (2010: 11.0%), which was calculated
based on the total bank loans over total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company.

x H ¥y X K A+
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Capital Expenditure

During the year, the capital expenditure was approximately
HK$66.5 million (2010: HK$159.9 million) and these amounts
were mainly used for new and existing shops renovation. The
decrease of the expenditure was mainly due to the initial set
up fee of our central food processing plant situated at Tai Po
Industrial Estate last year.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation in
exchange rate is immaterial to the Group’s financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
structured note and cash at bank that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. The Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying
or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short term imbalances.

For the purpose of offsetting the exposure of the interest rate
fluctuation, the Group had entered certain forward interest rate
swaps with financial institutions. The swaps were arranged to
match the maturity of the repayment schedule of certain bank
loans with the maturity over the next 5.5 years and had the fixed
swap rates ranging from 2.63% to 2.74%.

Non-current Assets Held for Sale

At 31 March 2010, certain leasehold land and buildings and
investment properties were presented as non-current assets held
for sale following the decision of the Group’s management to
dispose of these properties. A sale and purchase agreement
was entered into with a third party on 22 April 2010. The sale
and purchase was completed on 30 June 2010 with a gain on
disposal of HK$15.6 million.
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Charges on Group’s Assets

At 31 March 2011, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$48.3 million (2010: HK$68.8 million).

Further, the Group had pledged bank deposits of HK$2.7 million
(2010: HK$2.6 million) to secure a bank loan of HK$0.3 million
(2010: HK$1.4 million) borrowed by an independent third party
food processing contractor.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
2011 were HK$41.4 million (2010: HK$32.8 million). Included
in capital commitment outstanding at 31 March 2011 was an
amount of HK$23.7 million (2010: HK$29.9 million) for the future
development of the central food processing plant. In addition,
the Group had outstanding other commitments of HK$8.6
million at 31 March 2011 (2010: HK$10.4 million) in respect of
the contracting fee for operation of a fast food restaurant not
provided for in the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2011, guarantees are given to banks by the Company
in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities extended
to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under the guarantee arrangement. The maximum liability of the
Company at the end of the reporting period under the guarantee
is the amount of the facilities drawn down by all the subsidiaries
that are covered by the guarantees, being HK$84.0 million (2010:
HK$79.6 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured
and there is no transaction price.
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EREH Employee Information

RZZE——F=A=+—H A%EEE#H% At31 March 2011, the total number of employees of the Group
ANEH BL,600 AN (ZF—FF 1 4,400A) ©  was approximately 4,600 (2010: 4,400). Employees’ remuneration
BEFHMVBETIEEE - EFR&HBME is commensurate with their job nature, qualifications and
FeoHaehITE RERBLEMEZME experience. Salaries and wages are normally reviewed annually
FRaT o based on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

NEBUESHBIEAEBREREE 23X The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
B HEERZEEBREEBF HZHEE  share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the performance
F - BERRRENIEAT - WH - AEBMEHEIFY  of the Group and the individual employee. Also, the Group has
WEBETHEER st HRBaE 21 %3%  committed to provide related training programme to improve the
FEHEIEL AGE - quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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Executive Directors

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 59, is the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He graduated from the Parsons School of
Design with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended
a course on food and beverage management at New York
University. After completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977,
Mr Lo returned to Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast
Food Limited. In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of
the Company. Mr Lo was the Managing Director of the Company
from 1991 to 1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief
Executive of the Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009,
Mr Lo relinquished his role as Chief Executive but remained as
the Executive Chairman of the Company. He is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo is a director of
Neblett Investments Limited which has discloseable interests in
the shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 57, is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. He received a Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Economics from the University of Manitoba, Canada in 1977
and a Master of Business Administration Degree from the
University of East Asia, Macau in 1987. Mr Chan has over 30
years' experience in marketing. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked as a senior executive for a restaurant group which
is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). Mr Chan joined the Group in 1995. He
was appointed a Director of the Company in January 1998 and
was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1
January 2009. Mr Chan is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company.

Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 44, is the Executive Director of the
Company. She holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Economics,
a Master of Science Degree in Finance and a Master Degree
in Business Administration. She is an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants as well
as a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms Mak has extensive experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the
Company, she had held senior management positions in
several companies the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Ms Mak joined the Company in 2004 and was
appointed Executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorized
Representative of the Company on 1 January 2010. She is also
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
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Non-executive Director

Mr Ng Chi Keung*#, aged 62, is the Non-executive Director
of the Company. He holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration. He is an Associate Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. Mr Ng has over 30 years’
experience in finance and management. Prior to joining the
Group, he held senior management positions with a number
of well-known local and overseas multinational companies. Mr
Ng joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed a Director of
the Company in November 1995. He was re-designated as a
Non-executive Director of the Company from 1 January 2010
following his retirement from the Group. At the same time, Mr
Ng was also appointed as a member of the Audit Committee
and remains as a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr Ng is an Independent Non-executive Director
of Soundwill Holdings Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin*# aged 63, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director in 1991. He graduated
from The University of Hong Kong, the University of Strathclyde
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Master of Education Degree.
He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Human Resources
Management. Mr Chan has over 30 years’ experience in human
resources development in public, commercial and educational
sectors. He is currently Director of the Student Development
Services, City University of Hong Kong.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen*, aged 58, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2000. He
holds a Doctorate Degree in Business Administration from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA Degree from the
University of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist
Studies from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member
of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the
Society of Certified Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau
had over 12 years of management and accounting experience

+ ¥y X R £ X 4 ¥
I

17



18

E=EAER

Profile of Directors

BRE T ERR EH 2 AR - BB L IRE H
ERBRAER Em e L EEBERA
ANBVIIFRTESRULFEEER-F
—ZFXAZ+N\REME -

ERZJRE BFO+RE R-FTN
F+—RAEZERBILIFERITES » BN —
NNRFRERNEAALABRASE - ET
BERREBELEN - BELRBEEREA
RARZHTEERTRARLRTEREE
SEBERAPZIFNTES - ZMARERN
B S PT AR £ o

FEBEE BFRT/\BH R-TZTH
FNARZERRRREULIFNITEERA
RABREREGLE - TRELSTHAE
LEBEFFARGTHMAGEFRGE - AL
EREENCERFMERAEEMR NP
FrzRlaRBA - WATEHESHMB=1
FoRET R BAREEFENES
LELR FRERSNEBEBOXSHM L
2 BHBRERAR AR RN EBE M ETE
RIEMZHBERMEFARARZBELE
= MR NIRRT EH AR 2B IFH
TEEF—FREWARAR - KEBERMNE
RAR] - BEHEXRGEBER AR REFEREHEE
R BRAR]

RREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

in the private and public sectors in Canada prior to returning
to Hong Kong in 1987. Dr Lau is currently the Chairman and
Chief Executive of Giordano International Limited, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Dr Lau was an
Independent Non-executive Director of Hsin Chong Construction
Group Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange for seven years until he retired from office with effect
from 28 June 2010.

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo*, aged 46, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director in November 2008. He
graduated from the University of Western Ontario, Canada
with an Honours Degree in Business Administration in 1986.
Mr Tsoi is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of Varitronix International Limited and is also a Non-executive
Director of China WindPower Group Limited, both of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Peter Wan Kam To*, aged 58, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the
Company’s Audit Committee in September 2009. He is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr Wan
was a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong
and China firm. He has been a practicing accountant in Hong
Kong for over 30 years and has extensive experience in auditing,
finance, advisory and management. Mr Wan is currently an
Independent Director of Mindray Medical International Limited
(a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, USA) and
RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ).
Mr Wan is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
several companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely, China
Resources Land Limited, Dalian Port (PDA) Company Limited,
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited and Huaneng
Renewables Corporation Limited.

*  Member of the Audit Committee
#  Member of the Remuneration Committee
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board"”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) has pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP
Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
135 to 137 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30 per cent of the
Group's total turnover and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 43 to 137.
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Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$123,842,000 (2010: HK$93,269,000) have been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK20.0 cents (2010: HK18.0 cents) per
share together with a special interim dividend of HK8.0 cents
(2010: nil) per share were paid on 24 December 2010 by the
Company. The Board now recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK32.0 cents (2010: HK28.0 cents) per share and
a special final dividend of HK12.0 cents (2010: nil) per share in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2011.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$66,000 (2010: HK$58,000).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

During the year, the Company purchased shares of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). All the shares purchased were cancelled. Shares
were also issued during the year on exercise of share options.
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Directors
The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei
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BEE(E) Directors (continued)

FHITES Non-executive Director

RER Ng Chi Keung

BIFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
BREEF Joseph Chan Kai Nin

2B Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

BERR Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Fi8H Peter Wan Kam To

BIBEA QR ERMAIFE109% E189(vii)  In accordance with Bye-Laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company,

i - PREEF R ERZIEEBLKNEIKER  MrJoseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen shall retire

WRREF RS LWERT - BREEFLAER by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and Mr

DR EFELFESER - WEEARKEFMA  Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, being eligible,

RERBFFRE EEEET - will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

BYIERTEEFNBELZEFHRR/=F B Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
BANGMNERMAA - MPIZERA QTR term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation

RAFAREG LHRERE - HER]EEEE o and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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(a) EA QAN ER

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
As at 31 March 2011, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"”) were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

BREEEFITHERR
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

BEBER
RETRY HERT
iobizle R A
BARRE RkEs QAREE HUERE  ROHE my Aokt
Number of
underlying
shares Percentage
pursuant of total
Personal Family  Corporate Other to Share issued
interests interests interests interests Option Total shares
EHG Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 3,494,105 - - 51,984,279 - 55,478,384 44.24%
(FsET)
(note 1)
R Chan Chee Shing 15,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,015,000 0.81%
REW Mak Yee Mei 600,000 - - - 400,000 1,000,000 0.80%
RER Ng Chi Keung 119,000 - - - - 119,000 0.09%
BIaET « b 5 IR 5 & FNeblett Investments note 1: These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited

Limited ([Neblett]) # & * Neblett
E—RHNERBLERNIEERY
SMETXMEREENAG - &H
B EREERZETENNIBEER
HEMEZR  XFABEARRINRNT
- BEARIEE B NeblettFTiFA
B&AD R 2R o

("Neblett”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of
which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust
as a discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of
the Company, was deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Neblett.
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(b) EARBFRERRAFNESR

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(continued)
(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited
EREEBEI0OTNERERELER D
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$10 each

AR RikER ARER HibRE = wme
Personal Family  Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests Total

7 15 Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - - 279,357 290,857
(fF3E2)
(note 2)

PisE2 © 1t % B% 9 & HPengto International
Limited ([ Pengto])#F%H * Pengtos
—BUERBTEARBREEZER
WERMEREEN ARG - ZREG
FERBERZEANNEERY
KRR - X FARARKRITE
& BUR R {EHE B PengtoFT R A IR
e R -

Lt FrE RS R R o

B bt B T XX BB A HE AT &) | — 8 P i
o - AR AHRIRE 55 1R B £3521%
HRERFNECMER - HIRBIREST
AIPAE 07 A R R R B X P AR
RZZE——F=R=+—H ARAE
F  ReTBRABSEAMAHARSSK
Rt N \BENFL  DRBERAEARNRT
s E AR AREEE (AN & & 7 15015
XVEBFrEH) E 2 ) M A tn ~ MR (D =X
AR T EERIAR

BEERRESTBRABRBEARRAHBRE
FHEIPTEB RIS RN T X[
PrttEst &l | —%h

note 2:  These shares were held by Pengto International Limited
(“Pengto”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of
which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object.
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in
the trust as a discretionary object and as the Executive
Chairman of the Company, was deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the
section “Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2011,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of
age had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which had been entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under
the Company’s share option scheme are also set out in the
section “Share Option Scheme"” below.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
September 2002 under which the Directors are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director) or any employee
of the Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant, agent,
representative, adviser, supplier of goods or services, customer,
contractor, business ally and joint venture partner to take up
options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price which
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
share; (ii) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and
(iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer. As at 31 March 2011,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the share option scheme is 12,660,828 shares,
being 10 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 23 August 2006, the date on which the refreshment of the
mandate limit under the share option scheme was approved by
the shareholders of the Company. The maximum entitlement for
any one participant under the share option scheme shall not in
any 12 months period up to the date of grant exceed one per
cent of the shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Directors and
employees of the Company had the following interests in options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per share
at 31 March 2011 was HK$11.10 (2010: HK$8.25)) granted
for HK$1 consideration under the share option scheme of the
Company. The options are unlisted. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$1 each of
the Company.
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RZE-2f R=B--% SRBRE
MA-A ZA=t-H FEERE  TEAAN
AN FARTH ERERN  FRTREY AR BF A ShmE

BREZE BREHE ®¥A TEEE BREHA  BREME  BREHR SRORE SRUNE  THEGE
Weighted
average
price of
Closing price  closing price
Number of ~ Number of Number of ~ Number of ~ Number of per share per share
options options options options options immediately  immediately
outstanding granted lapsed exercised  outstanding Exercise  before date  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable during during  at 31 March price of grant  of exercise
2010 the year granted period  the year the year 2011 pershare  of options  of options
REA(E%) 1,000,000 - CEDNE TRCE-TE - - 1000000  EHe26T  EH6.287 -
Chan Chee Shing (Director) MANR MA-HZE HK$6.26 HK$6.28
8 April 2009 —T5E
ZR=T-REH
AREZN%IE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period

from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016

KBH(ES) 400,000 - ZZ-%f R-F——F - - 400,000  E®808T  AEESOIRL -
Mak Yee Mei (Director) =h-H -A-B% HK$8.08 HK$8.07
1 March 2010 ZEF
TZR=+-AHH
AREE0%TE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 January 2011
to 31 December 2016

EE 800,000 - ZEZEBNE TRIE-EBE - - 800,000  BHE307T %623 -
Employee TA A MARAZE HK$6.30 HK$6.23
6 April 2009 e
7 A A &
AREE0%{T6
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 5 April 2010
to 4 April 2017
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MR HERtE(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)
RZE-2f R=B--% SRBRE
mA-A ZA=t-H SRERE AEBAN
ATEH  FARTH EREME  FRTRY ATREH BF Y ShmE
BREZE BREHE ®¥H TEEE BREHA BREHE  BREHR SRORE SRUNE  THLEGE
Weighted
average
price of
Closing price  closing price
Number of ~ Number of Number of ~ Number of  Number of per share per share
options options options options options immediately  immediately
outstanding granted lapsed exercised  outstanding Exercise  before date  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable during during  at 31 March price of grant  of exercise
2010 the year granted period  the year the year 2011 pershare  of options  of options
&g 3,220,000 - ZEEE ARCT-FTE O (320000 (4900000 2398000  AWe267  BH628T  EHB6IR
Employees MANR MA-HZE HK$6.26 HK$6.28 HK$8.67
8 April 2009 —T5E
ZR=T—REH
ARER%{TE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016
&8 100,000 - CETNF ERSER - (5,000 95000  BH629T  EMe18T  EWS0ST
Employee hARA MA-RZ HK$6.29 HK$6.18 HK$8.05
4 May 2009 —ERE
ZR=T-REM
AEBE20%7(E
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016
& 200,000 - IEINE ARZF-FE  (100,000) (10,000) 90,000  E®7e9T  AE730T  EMSd0T
Employees tATH tA-RZE HK$7.69 HK$7.30 HK$8.40
10 July 2009 ey
AAZTHER
AHHEN%TE
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 July 2010
t0 30 June 2016
RIEEBBR LD F

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

RZE-2f RZB--% SRBRE
MA-A ZA=t-H REERE TEAAN
AN FARTH EREMN  FRORH ATRH BFEEH Shimg
BREZE BREXE ®¥A TEHE BREZA  BREME  BREHR  SROEE SRUGE  THEGE
Weighted
average
price of
Closing price  closing price
Number of ~ Number of Number of ~ Number of ~ Number of per share per share
options options options options options immediately  immediately
outstanding granted lapsed exercised  outstanding Exercise  before date  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable during during  at 31 March price of grant  of exercise
2010 the year granted period  the year the year 2011 pershare  of options  of options
E& - 50000 ZE-%F RZE——F - - 50,000 1096 EE10.607 -
Employee TZA+tA TZAt+tRE HK$10.96  HK$10.60
17 December EN\E
010 t-ATAEAR
AREEN%IE
Bxercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period from
17 December 2011
to 16 November 2018
= - 100000 Z5-—% TR-%--% - - 100,000 %1090 %1092 -
Employee ZAtAA ZAt7AZ HK$10.90  HK$1092
16 February “E—tF
011 ZATEREH
AEBZ20%76
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 16 February 2012

to 15 February 2017

ERD R TRREN SRR AR
IEFIERER - 2RISR R M
AE1(0) ()P EE24 -

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note
1(0)(ii) and note 24 to the financial statements respectively.

B B ESN  RAFEAEARERE - AAF
FEEAMBATIDRELEEMLH - B
EARBESE  ZSHTBRABHEEARE
AWM T\BEHNF LA ABEBEARRAL
HALIAEEOEE (BN & & RO Pr e E
&) SRR M s o

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations within the
meaning of the SFO.
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FLAFIRFPHERER

50 B ) B 3365 AT I E BB T
SR HRMART AR - RARFESE
EREBTRABIN - HATR-B——F
= A=+—BEAARARH IR 0
HESTAB T

Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the
Company

As at 31 March 2011, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company, were as follows:

HER hEe®T
BERS R A7 48 B

W R 17 BoL

Shares directly Percentage
and/or of total

indirectly held issued shares

(i) Neblett(FffzE) () Neblett (note)
(i ®EIEERAF (M)
(iii) Winning Spirit
International
Corporation (Pff&E)
(iv) HSBC International
Trustee Limited (B &)
(v) Allard Partners
Limited

isr: hEEZHBRE —#HLRKRMH: LA
NeblettiF & ° Neblett:2 —EEWinning
Spirit International Corporation &
B & & ae & RWinning Spirit
International Corporation Rl — M
HSBC International Trustee Limited A%
FARMNEERENNTF - REIBER
RElE—HHAERBEERERENA
B+ IMAE =¥ ENebletth (5T EIE
BEHER - WHAR 2B Neblett THF IR
3 H)REZS ° HSBC International Trustee
LimitedE A E &= B NeblettH)EEHI X
FEA - AR A B Neblett TRIAR (9 B9
e o

BRI RTR

B B FTRES R ——F=ZA=1—
B RIBEEFGOIEBCGRREMFENE
ACfprEr - S EBUR AR B R AR
EEMERTORE °

2 8 KIEEEERAR
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(i) Jumbo Easy Limited (note)
(iii) Winning Spirit International Corporation (note)

(iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited (note)

(v) Allard Partners Limited

51,984,279 41.45%
51,984,279 41.45%
51,984,279 41.45%
51,984,279 41.45%
12,632,500 10.07%

note:  These interests represented the same block of shares and were
held by Neblett. Neblett was a company wholly-owned by
Winning Spirit International Corporation which in turn was a
company wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited
in the capacity of trustee. Jumbo Easy Limited was deemed
to be interested in these shares by virtue of its capacity of
a discretionary object of the trust which beneficially owned
Neblett and being a wholly-owned company of Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung. HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to
be interested in the shares held by Neblett in the capacity of
trustee of the trust which beneficially owned Neblett.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
as at 31 March 2011.
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FRBAEE(RARRIES)NBEA - ZHEH
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RARZYEENNEE MIRESFIFOT

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Continuing Connected Transaction

The particulars of the following continuing connected transaction
of the Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Tenancy agreement with New Champion International
Limited (“New Champion”)

As detailed in note 31(b) to the financial statements, Fairwood
Fast Food Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, leased a property
from New Champion for a further three years from 10 April
2009 for the operation of a fast food restaurant thereat after
the expiration of the old lease term on 9 April 2009. As New
Champion is an associate of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of
the Company), the entering into the lease constituted continuing
connected transaction for the Company. Details of rent and
deposits paid by Fairwood Fast Food Limited relating to the
property are as follows:

—B——F —E-FF

2011 2010

F7 Fr

$'000 $'000

AEEHRS Rent for the year 1,440 1,437
R=ZA=+—H®MEELEE  Rental deposits at 31 March 360 360
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RREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Continuing Connected Transaction (continued)

In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in connection
with the above continuing connected transaction, the Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
transaction with New Champion (the “Transaction”) has been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of agreement governing the
Transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transaction for the year ended
31 March 2011 has not exceeded the maximum aggregate
annual value.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Saved as the transaction disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transaction”, no contract of significance
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Save as set out in note 27(c)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year. Shares were repurchased during the year to reduce the
dilutive effect of granting share options.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 March 2011 are set
out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Five-Year Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 138
and 139 of the annual report.

Investment Properties
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 140 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.
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Wi Confirmation of Independence
RARBWRERBEIIFRITESIZBET  The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
MBIEINMGAAEHMFR B IR - I executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
RRMBBEIFNTESHEELAL - pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

B BED Auditors

ERHEHMEBATRER - WEEEE KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
EHE o AEFGHRENGERREAESF K appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
gF IR2EHEFHSAEHEAMETARZL  auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
AR SR AR GE o annual general meeting.

S
By Order of the Board

ERB
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
BiTEE

Executive Chairman

B8 —E——FXAZTNA
Hong Kong, 29 June 2011
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3 2 FAIRWOOD HOII:\DINGS LIMITED x .;\ ‘%) x ﬁ )



3

AREEEERAB(ARA N 2EES
(lExzg ) —BHENEEaKFEEER
IMREERCR M et - IR BEEERFEE

BRIt RREREAARERER
ExRRERERERIBREEN - AQF
REBEE-ZT——F=-A=+t—HIEFERD
BITEREEMARIMBERARESF LT
BRI EWAR B DR+ OB RERTER
SPAN(TREERTRIL)

BESFXHHETA

AR B RAE R LR BI85+ e £
BOTANEFETEFRSNRESTAD (]
BRI ERARRIER([EFDETHE
HRZHTH| - RARBABERER - 2
EEHR KEXEE_T——F=A=1
— HALEFERYBEETIRESTAIFTARE IR
£ HEATERB - RZF-FTF+ A
TARA REBEE(REEDHEART
P 1928,5008% ([ &z & 1) - —fE A TR 5
AEBRBHEETR  ERAESFEIMNOI R
R DR - BOBRNERKE - X5
TR EST RIA3(a)(i) A T EF £ E RSB
EARZFEL - RELER I EEMBERE
EE  WAAFRETREETIHRE LK
BIFWE - WRES Z PR - BRI E
o BRAEFRLZBHFREMBEN - AR
BRI ERRENEE - BEEFE R LHR
EHRIRET AR IR TS o

EFxe

EXATARAEBHNERER AEEF
BRESRARBNEE  UWBEBSIEREE
ARBMER - HRABAREAR BRI
BEff - 2REF - ERARAILRRON R
EBMIFELIRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) is committed to achieving high
standards of corporate governance practices to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2011, save
and except that the Chairman and/or Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation, details of
which and the reasons for the deviation are stated below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities transactions
by the Directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”). Following
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed their
compliance with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2011 with the following
exception. On 26 October 2010, Mr Ng Chi Keung (“Mr Ng”)
sold 28,500 shares of the Company (“Disposal”). The Disposal
arose from a standing sale instruction placed by Mr Ng a month
before and while Mr Ng was overseas and might not be easily
accessible, part of the said standing order was fulfilled. The
transaction took place in the morning on the commencement day
of the black-out period under rule A3(a)(ii) of the Model Code. Mr
Ng was not in possession of any information which was or might
be of a price-sensitive nature at that time. The non-compliance
was not deliberate and completely unintentional and was due
to an inadvertent oversight. In view of the non-compliance, the
Company sets up more stringent control on dispatch of notice
to Directors on black-out period to allow the Directors the time
to organize their affairs in accordance with the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors have taken decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Board of Directors (continued)

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee
which comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the above-mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:—

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To
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Board of Directors (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Biographical details of all Directors are set
out on pages 16 to 18 of this annual report. There is no relationship
among directors of the Board and in particular, between the
Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2011 and attendance record of each Director is set out
below:—

HEREEBRE
No. of meetings attended/held

BITES
#EFRB (BiTER)
PR (FTEUAEEL)

FBTES
RER

BIFHTES
EEES
FImE
S
F 4

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mak Yee Mei 4/4

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin 3/4
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 4/4
Peter Wan Kam To 4/4
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Board of Directors (continued)

All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual
and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Company is set out on pages 41 and
42 in the independent auditor’s report. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Bye-Laws of the Company (the
“Bye-Laws”) to appoint any person as a director of the Company
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
Though the Company has not set up a nomination committee,
the Board as a whole will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the qualifications, experience, integrity and
time commitment of the proposed candidates.

According to the Bye-Laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors (other than any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director) for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
provided that each Director (other than any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director) including those appointed
for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by the shareholders in accordance with the Bye-
Laws.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Chan Chee Shing respectively
whose roles are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years; however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the
Bye-Laws. The Board considers that the exemption of both the
Chairman and the Managing Director (the Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company from such retirement by rotation provisions
would provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
efficiency usage of resources and enables effective planning,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies and
business plans. The Board believes that it would be in the best
interest of the Company for such Directors to continue to be
exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website and are available
to shareholders upon request. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr Joseph
Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and one Non-executive
Director, Mr Ng Chi Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee met once to review the remuneration
of Directors.
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Remuneration Committee (continued)
The attendance record of each member is as follows:
HERE, SERE

No. of meetings attended/held
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 0/1
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 171

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 17

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, Mr
Ng Chi Keung and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter
Wan Kam To. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Peter Wan
Kam To and meets at least twice a year.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant
or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board for
approval. It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature
of the external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system and
risk management system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has adopted written terms of reference which are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management’s
responses; and to evaluate the system of internal controls and
risk management of the Group.
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Audit Committee (continued)
The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERY, EBRE
No. of meetings attended/held

BYFHITES
FE(ERF)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 2/2
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 1/2
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 1/2

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 2/2

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the fees paid/payable to
the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
by the auditors of the Company were as follows:

iR R =t k|
Nature of services Amount
BT T
HK$'000
—E-TF R EEEEME Review fee for 2010/11 interim results 440
T G RREEERE Audit fee for 2010/11 final results 2,590
PIERMBIE S RRE O IERZRG Non-audit services which covered provision of
tax compliance services 597
1Bz Total 3,627
P EBESIE Internal Controls

EXECRRREARAREREMAMNA
ARECIRHIE - AEBM A AR IR HIE B I HE
MEWRMEERE  UAZEBEXKERET
HAEER REEETSEREIFANER
BRI - R GRS KA ERE A
ZERT  AERHEASENFHEREAR
ERTE - WRERETABEDN LR -
E=gE SR ANEB ARSI E K
o

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes a well defined management structure
with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensure maintenance of proper books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislations
and regulations. The Board conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.
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Investor Relations and Communication

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations communications. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the
Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board
or management directly.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Fairwood Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 43 to 137, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE_T——F=A=1T—HILFE (AEBIIT)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E——fF —T-TF
2011 2010
k3 Fr Tt
Note $'000 $'000
e Turnover 3&12 1,665,881 1,562,348
FHERA Cost of sales (1,424,680) (1,344,519)
EF Gross profit 241,201 217,829
Hb A Other revenue 4 1,335 708
E PS5 Other net income 4 14,207 4,974
HEER Selling expenses (30,112) (27,112)
THER Administrative expenses (78,569) (81,035)
[EE & EREEE Impairment losses on fixed assets 13(d) (6,832) (7,389)
TEMEGERS Valuation gains on investment properties 13(b) 6,019 3,743
R T Profit from operations 147,249 111,718
BB R AR Finance costs 5(a) (2,100) (1,332)
BB AER Profit before taxation 5 145,149 110,386
Pt Income tax 6(a) (21,307) (17,117)
EATEERR Profit for the year attributable to
Pl F R equity shareholders of the Company 123,842 93,269
SREF Earnings per share 11
B PN Basic 98.55flicents 74.211llcents
3 Diluted 97.40flicents 74.071llicents

FSNEF137EMN B AT SRR —IB
oo AR AR SRR AR B AEEIEET

FMIEE10 ©

of the Company are set out in note 10.

The notes on pages 51 to 137 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

IR

BE_T——F=A=1T—HILFE (AEBIIT)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
Fr T
$'000 $'000
KATESERR Profit for the year attributable to equity
BRAFERR shareholders of the Company 123,842 93,269
AEEHMEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
(BRBi%): (after tax):
BEREARLMNEH Exchange differences on translation of financial
(MBI R statements of the People’s Republic of
BT ERER A S R China (the "PRC") subsidiaries 1,901 151
PR AP R B A A Release of exchange reserve upon
Iy O] B 0 (4 dissolution of PRC subsidiaries 2,615 -
4,516 151
ARQ E SR RS Total comprehensive income for the year
rEEXAKRZEE attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 128,358 93,420

o

e
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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statements.

The notes on pages 51 to 137 form part of these financial
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZE——F=A=+—0 (LUB%JIIR)

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E——F —T—TF
2011 2010
B aE Fr Fit
Note $'000 $'000
(&%)
(restated)
kRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 13(a)
—REME - Investment properties 42,367 42,078
—HthE - METRE — Other property, plant and equipment 349,997 348,928
—LMEEEREER — Interests in leasehold land held for
ofnbzibizh-g: £ own use under operating leases 7,675 7,886
400,039 398,892
EES Goodwill 14 1,001 1,001
BENESZe Rental deposits paid 42,245 40,861
Hith@m&E Other financial asset 16 2,334 2,341
B IEE E Deferred tax assets 25(b) 663 37
446,282 443,132
RENEE Current assets
BHEGENIEREBEE Non-current assets held for sale 17 = 7,247
"rE Inventories 18(a) 33,087 22,168
JFEE Ut B SR L b E U R Trade and other receivables 19 47,785 39,148
AUk (Bl AN BRFR TE Current tax recoverable 25(a) 47 8
RITFHABES Bank deposits and cash 20 253,710 210,042
334,629 278,613
REBaE Current liabilities
FEA BR SRAN Ho At A 3K Trade and other payables 21 219,560 223,486
RITER Bank loans 22 10,908 9,275
FET AR EARL IR Current tax payable 25(a) 14,325 3,219
P Provisions 26 5,790 4,335
250,583 240,315
REBEEFE Net current assets 84,046 38,298
EERABERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 530,328 481,430
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
W-E——F=Z A=+—HUABEIIR)

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E——F —ZT—TF
2011 2010
B aE Fr Tt
Note $'000 $'000
(&%)
(restated)
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 22 31,018 35,990
R IAEE Deferred tax liabilities 25(b) 8,507 8,139
Bl eRE Rental deposits received 479 1,126
=] Provisions 26 22,597 23,585
62,601 68,840
EERE Net assets 467,727 412,590
BN EE Capital and reserves 27
%N Share capital 125,414 125,687
Gl Reserves 342,313 286,903
AT EZRR Total equity attributable to equity
FEfhEmERE shareholders of the Company 467,727 412,590

BEFEeRN_T——F AT+ NBZELHF Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

AR - 29 June 2011.
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Chan Chee Shing
HITERE 1T AE%
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FSIEFI37ENWEE AT BKH R —  The notes on pages 51 to 137 form part of these financial
o e statements.

RPEEEBRAF
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Statement of Financial Position

RZZB——F=A=1t—RH (AEKBIIR)

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E——F —E—TF
2011 2010
B aE Fr T
Note $'000 $'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
AW A AR E Investments in subsidiaries 15 283,231 310,212
REBEE Current assets
JFEE Ut B RN L A M R Trade and other receivables 19 89,426 62,119
WOTERNE S Bank deposits and cash 20 222 205
89,648 62,324
REEE Current liabilities
JFEE AT R SN LAt B 4T 3K Trade and other payables 21 29,611 29,214
REBEERE Net current assets 60,037 33,110
BEFE Net assets 343,268 343,322
BN RE Capital and reserves 27
[N Share capital 125,414 125,687
(] Reserves 217,854 217,635
ERHBE Total equity 343,268 343,322

EEEgR T ——F AT B ELFT  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

AJEEH o

‘RS

29 June 2011.

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

BITERE

Executive Chairman

oW

1
)

EFRI7ENMEBAM BRI —

The notes on
statements.

Chan Chee Shing

Chief Executive Officer

pages 51 to 137 form part of these financial
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BHE_T——F=A=1T—HIEFE (AEHIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FARERRAELDS
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
TR
BN
RA  RGBE ExREE EXRE ERE  ROEN g
Land and
buildings
Share Share Capital  Exchange revaluation  Retained
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
i T I i i T i T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZZNENA-A At 1 April 2009 125,587 225 2,668 (3,648) U 249,817 374,890
RERER Profit for the year - - - - - 93269 93,269
Et2ENE Other comprehensive income - - - 151 - - 151
TERRENRES Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 151 - 93,269 93,420
RERRE SR TR Shares issued under
share option scheme 27(c)(i) 100 133 - - - - 233
BER Issue expenses - 4 - - - - n
TEEBHENRE Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 10(b) - - - - - (35,192) (35192
REERERNRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 10(a) - - - - - (22,624)  (22,624)
INEREENARD BERNZ S Equity-settled share-based
transactions - % 1,771 - - - 1,867
RZZE-ZF=f=1-A At 31 March 2010 125,687 450 4439 (3,497) U4 285270 412,590
RZZT-ZFRA-A At 1 April 2010 125,687 450 4,439 (3,497) 241 285270 412,590
RERREF Profit for the year - - - - - 13842 123882
Et2EYER Other comprehensive income - - - 4,516 - - 4,516
RFERENEER Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 4,516 - 13842 128358
RERRETHETNRG Shares issued under
share option scheme 27000 505 2,671 - - - - 3,176
BIER Issuie expenses - (44) - - - = (a4)
LEEDIERRS Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 10(b) - - - - - (35203)  (35203)
MEERERNRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 10(a) - - - - - (35,196)  (35,196)
INEREENNRD ARENR S Equity-settled share-based
transactions - 610 890 - - - 1,500
BEASRS Repurchase of own shares
-EFEE - par value paid 27(0)) (778) - - - - - (778)
—BHRENRZKA — premium and transaction
costs paid 27(c)(ii) - (3,687) - - - (2,989) (6,676)
WZE—E=R=1-H At 31 March 2011 125414 - 5329 1,019 241 335,724 467,721

ESN1EFI137EMMNEB AR 5HEZA—26  The notes on pages 51 to 137 form part of these financial

e statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BEZT——F=A=1T—HIEFE (5
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

H5IR)

—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
B &E Fix Frx FT T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ReETH Operating activities
BB AR A Profit before taxation 145,149 110,386
JHEIER : Adjustments for:
—EEEENE — Depreciation of fixed assets 61,799 54,232
— A EHEREERN — Amortisation of interests in
+ b 0 E A S B leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases 211 212
—BETEERESE — Impairment losses on fixed assets 6,832 7,389
— B A FEYGR YR EE 1B — Impairment losses on
other receivables - 205
— AR R EBEFABRYN - Change in fair value of other
HEteraEmn financial liabilities at fair value
ARBEES through profit or loss 624 116
—FMEEA — Interest expense 1,476 1,216
— R EHA — Interest income (1,335) (708)
- B RERIARBE LR — Provision for long service
payments made 608 1,285
—HERFEFENERE — Gain on disposal of non-current
BEENRE assets held for sale (15,633) -
—HEREEBBIETEE — Net loss on disposal of fixed
BETEENSEFE assets from normal activities 3,850 2,690
—BRHMI B ARMEIEFE  — Net loss on dissolution
of subsidiaries 2,145 -
—REAMENHERR — Valuation gains on
investment properties (6,019) (3,743)
— AR AE AR — Equity-settled share-based
RERNER payment expenses 1,500 1,867
EEESEBRKERT Operating profit before
changes in working capital 201,207 175,147
FEUgm, (Increase)/decrease in inventories (10,919) 7,064
B ASZEEM Increase in rental deposits paid (7,604) (1,251)
JEURBE KA EUCFIZ AN Increase in trade and
other receivables (2,298) (3,943)
FEHEE RN EL At FE A5 5K (Decrease)/increase in trade
)1 hn and other payables (3,604) 19,808
Euﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ\ Decrease in rental deposits received (262) (293)
EEARBRBEERE Provision for long service
payments utilised (768) (685)
BB A BERARLERS Provision for reinstatement
costs utilised (714) (1,105)
REEBELENRS Cash generated from operations 175,038 194,742
2 HFILE Interest received 1,216 770
BEAFLE Interest paid (1,476) (1,214)
[EANEZ2E] Tax paid
*Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ SH - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (10,645) (9,722)
REEENEGH — Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 144 2,678
REEHMBHRS Net cash generated from operating
FHELE activities carried forward 164,277 187,254
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z——FZA=Z+—HLEFEUABEIIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

:ﬁ__ﬂ-: — 7 = j‘f‘f
2011 2010
B sE T T v T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ABRETEHREBH Net cash generated from operating
RE&FH activities brought forward 164,277 187,254
REEH Investing activities
BABTEEMNRK Payment for purchase of fixed assets (66,467) (140,664)
HERBFENIFRSD Net proceeds from disposal of
BEMSRIATE non-current assets held for sale 22,880 -
LEETEEMS Net proceeds from disposal
I of fixed assets 302 701
RETEMANESFE Net cash used in investing activities (43,285) (139,963)
RMEED Financing activities
IR RERT B BTG Proceeds from shares issued
Fr{S k1A under share option scheme 3,176 233
BIIRMAIEEHER Expenses incurred in connection
with the issue of shares (44) 4)
BB AR 9 1 3% Payment for repurchase of shares (7,454) -
2R E Dividends paid (70,399) (57,816)
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (3,590) (1,771)
FFRITER Drawdown of bank loans = 41,000
BHEARITERIE N Increase in pledged bank deposits = (2,550)
METETANESFE Net cash used in financing activities (78,311) (20,908)
HeENBESEEYEMBE  Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 42,681 26,383
REA—HWEREENES Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 207,492 181,098
ZEY
IEEXZSBHNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 821 11
R=ZA=+—HWER2 Cash and cash equivalents
NREEEY at 31 March 20 250,994 207,492
FL1EF137EMM B AN BHREAN—EH The notes on pages 51 to 137 form part of these
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financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIE=AER - BRIHABESITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance

-

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 1(f)); and
— derivative financial instruments (see note 1(e)).
Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see note

1(u)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(RIESHHH - FAAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

FEEHBE(E)

(b) HHHEMBREE(E)

RPEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in note 34.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1())).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

10)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement
or disposal of an investment property is recognised in the
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(r)(ii).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied for other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 1(h).

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1())):

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not clearly held
under an operating lease (see note 1(h)); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
situated thereon
- Leasehold improvements

30 - 50 years

the remaining term

of the tenancy leases
the remaining term

of the tenancy leases
10% - 20% per annum
15% per annum
25% per annum
10% per annum

- Air-conditioning plant

- Furniture and equipment
- Motor vehicles

- Computer system

- Others
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery
and utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent
replacements are charged to profit or loss in the year when
the expenditure is incurred.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and
is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(f)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of other assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

Trade and other receivables and other financial asset

The Group's other financial asset represents a structured bank
note which is a non-derivative financial asset with fixed or
determinable payments that is not quoted in an active market
and is classified as loans and receivables. Purchases and sales
of structured note are recognised on the trade date. Other
financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets.

Trade and other receivables and other financial asset are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(j)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables and other

financial asset carried at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables and other financial asset
that are stated at amortised cost are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss of trade
and other receivables and other financial asset carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial asset carried at amortised cost (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade debtors included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being
held under an operating lease;

— investments in subsidiaries; and

— goodwill.

x X ¥y X K+

),



-

1 EERHBE(H)
() EEREE)

(i) R EEARE ()
NRLBAMEASR o
SEMPMESE - Wb - HEE
ME - THEEFETARETSR
FH AKELESFEFHEATR
147 o

— FERKEEE

BENAWRESEEEAAEE
A HERANEEREERET
HESE - EHEEREERR -
BRFRRR R EGIZ R R
ERMSUEEEREEMNEE
R E B B A B B AT ST IR R
FREHRE - MREEMES
RS MAER LYW BT RE
BEMEENRESRA - RIS
RELBYRASRANK/NEE
BRI (BIR 2 E L BT ) RAEE AJ
WEEH -

— MEREEER

EERENMBREEHETNAR
EEESNETRESER -’
BEEEFESEBETER - D
ReELETERNREESR
B BERLESREZRTE
HE T (S ZAET) e
MBRTE 258 - AARIZEL PR A 5%
Br(daE ) NEMEER
FHLRE BEEENRRENS
MO ERE@ENAABERE
HERRNRASNERIEEA
BfE - WIREHEE ©

1
()

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighed average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(q)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

(0) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained profits).

(p) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are
met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i) Financial quarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specific payments to reimburse
the beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specific debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group or the Company issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 1(g)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(r) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to customers.
Revenue is after deduction of any sale discounts.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

x X ¥y X K+

),



-

1
(r)

FESHBE(E)

1 ‘: AN ']H i

(iii) R BIAZEBRFBIARFHER ©

(iv) AU A AR B 3 A B 1R 25 P FE

27
G

ANEE IR
RARIREBBKEEEBHNBAFR
N B BB  MEPRLEER
B AR EBAIRARE - K
SEMZ7EE /B

FRNINER IR 5 B OINEE K
T]E - MINEREUMEREERR
BRIRRE SRS IMNEERIBE o
PE SRR iR s P AR

DU S A B POSME S B I A B B
8BRS AHNEERRE o SN
1 R BRI AR A (A BE MO FE B 1
AEREEREE AL BEY A0S
R o

BRI EBHEERER H A NING
PERARE A ERME BB o MBI
RIER - BRE-_ZFETAF-A—HK
ZIEWBBEBNBBREINRBRE A ER
EENEE - ARRE G REHI
SNESIERIBE DB o PRELMER =
BEHEME2ERETHER  LEZET
HME SR D R RE

EEREERTBRINEBELNES
B BZRBERNRFELZESH
BB YR AEE -

1
(r)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual
basis.

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while that
for subsidiaries which operate in the PRC is Renminbi. The
presentation currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of operations outside Hong Kong
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset is available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company are concerned
are investment properties. Investment properties, even if held
for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(v) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member
of such an individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEEHBEE) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(w) 7 #HE (w) Segment reporting
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Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2 BEBRBERT Changes in Accounting Policies
BAGMAGEM T MEBELEITH The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
(BEAUBREEL)  ZE(HEBEVE amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are
HMEERMSET R MBI 28 - J Lk first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
ERMZEBEAEBNARAINENE and the Company. Of these, the following developments are
FTEAREE AR o B HEAEE I K E® relevant to the Group’s financial statements:
FEBAREFRESCNT
— (EBUBREENEIHR(ZZEE —  HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

NEFER)— T EE ]

— (BAGHERDE27RIBT— & - Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
O B 765 i 35 0 B8 @ B TS 3k financial statements

— (BAGHERDEIRIEET— 2 - Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
BTA: BANGE - SEBEY Recognition and measurement — eligible hedged items
HRIEE |

— (BEYBREENDNEHE (2T — Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

)

— (BAEBRE)ESTH [ B 7 ¥k &Y - HK (Int) 5, Presentation of financial statements -
FH — B RAEHM T IREREER classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains
FHEHERN DR a repayment on demand clause

RREEBERAF
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The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

InNovember 2010, the HKICPA issued Hong Kong Interpretation
5, Presentation of financial statements — classification by
the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause. This Interpretation is effective immediately on
issuance and sets out the conclusion reached by the HKICPA
that a term loan which contains a clause which gives the
lender the unconditional right to demand repayment at any
time should be classified as a current liability in accordance
with paragraph 69(d) of HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements, irrespective of the probability that the lender will
invoke the clause without cause.

In order to comply with the requirements of Hong Kong
Interpretation 5, the Group has changed its accounting policy
on classification of term loans that contain a repayment on
demand clause. Under the new policy, term loans with clauses
which give the lender the unconditional right to call the loan
at any time are classified as current liabilities in the statement
of financial position. Previously such term loans were classified
in accordance with the agreed repayment schedule unless the
Group had breached any of the loan covenants set out in the
agreement as of the reporting date or otherwise had reason
to believe that the lender would invoke its rights under the
immediate repayment clause within the foreseeable future.

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively
by reclassifying term loans of $5,686,000 as at 31 March
2010 from non-current liabilities to current liabilities. There
is no impact to the classification of loans as at 31 March
2011 as a result of the application of this Interpretation.
The reclassification has no effect on reported profit or
loss, total income and expense or net assets for any period
presented.

The amendments to HKAS 39 have had no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements as the amendments were
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
The other developments resulted in changes in accounting
policies but none of these changes in policies has a material
impact on the current or comparative periods, for the
following reasons:

The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3
and HKAS 27 has not yet had a material effect on the
Group’s financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters into a relevant
transaction (for example, a business combination or a
disposal of a subsidiary) and there is no requirement to
restate the amounts recorded in respect of previous such
transactions.

The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect
of recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) has had
no material impact as there is no requirement to restate
amounts recorded in previous periods and no such deferred
tax assets or losses arose in the current period.

As a result of the amendment to HKAS 17, Leases, arising
from the “Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)” omnibus
standard, the Group has re-evaluated the classification of
its interests in leasehold land as to whether, in the Group’s
judgement, the lease transfers significantly all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the land such that the Group
is in a position economically similar to that of a purchaser.
The Group has concluded that the classification of such
leases as operating leases continues to be appropriate.
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3 Turnover

food restaurants and property investments.

The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast

Turnover represents the sales value of food and beverages
sold to customers and rental income. An analysis of turnover

is as follows:
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
Fx FIT
$'000 $'000
RmMERmiEE Sale of food and beverages 1,660,066 1,555,111
WERS Property rental 5,815 7,237
1,665,881 1,562,348
Hthr A FAFR 5B 4 Other Revenue and Net Income
—E——F —T—TF
2011 2010
Frx Tt
$'000 $'000
Hi A Other revenue
FLEMA Interest income 1,335 708
HibFris/#8 Other net income
HERERFED Gain on disposal of non-current
EMBE EH WS assets held for sale 15,633 -
ERBEGBETRE Net loss on disposal of fixed
BEEEENBEFE assets from normal activities (3,850) (2,690)
BEMAEBEES Electric and gas range incentives 2,294 2,186
BB SR Profit on sale of redemption gifts 1,175 519
NGO E = Ve Net loss on dissolution of subsidiaries (2,145) -
REKRIEAEENEE Compensation paid to a landlord
KFHE upon early termination of a tenancy lease (147) -
BTE=FEMNEAN—BEE Compensation received on granting right of
AT T2 i YA (B access to a third party for construction
work performed in part of a restaurant - 3,481
HAh Others 1,247 1,478
14,207 4,974
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIESHTHA - TRBIABETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 FRREIEF 5 Profit Before Taxation
BREBLADR A E MR (GTA): Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
—F——fF —E-ZF
2011 2010
Fx Fit
$'000 $'000
(a) MERAK (a) Finance costs
AR BEFABROEM Change in fair value of other financial
EREBENAREEES liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 624 116
RITERFE Interest on bank loans 1,476 1,216
2,100 1,332
(b) BT A (b) Staff costs
FEHEBCRIRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 18,736 17,901
LARE R B R LARR 19 Equity-settled share-based
REMHER payment expenses 1,500 1,867
o TEMEMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 423,186 404,387
443,422 424,155
(c) HtEE (c) Other items
GFERAHE) Cost of inventories (note) 469,829 437,364
BEEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 61,799 54,232
s EREREE AN Amortisation of interests
T i A G in leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases 211 212
1% E AN B & Auditor’s remuneration 3,030 2,825
E AR WK AR E 1R Impairment losses on other receivables — 205
MENKETHEER Operating lease charges on properties
— EBEERNKEE — Minimum lease payments 226,585 212,329
—-sBHE — Contingent rentals 15,752 17,457
il gz Rental receivable
—REVMEREE — Investment properties, less direct
¥ {11250,0007T outgoings of $250,000
(ZZ=—=4 :270,0007T) (2010: $270,000) (3,402) (3,457)
—HMMEgERE — Other operating sub-leases (2,163) (3,510)
HEEMIXEA Cost of subsequent replacement
FEMHE R of cutlery and utensils 8,643 10,029
MizE : EERBRE note:  This represents food costs.

RPEREBRAF +
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(a) FFAWBEKRFTIRABRIAR -

6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

—g——% -T2
2011 2010
Fr F7t
$'000 $'000
TEHE—FEBAEG Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REF AR Provision for the year 21,737 12,037
N FEEETRCGABH) Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 80 (95)
21,817 11,942
AEBE—r Current tax — PRC
LA FEEERT Over-provision in respect of prior years (252) -
EERE Deferred tax
iy = B E A e D) Origination and reversal of temporary differences (258) 5,175
21,307 17,117

ZE——FEMNBABNEHERBRER
FEMGHFTEFFREFIA165% (ZF
—ZF 1 16.5% )M EGTE - PEFIA
EERAFERHINECEMER - WA
FEABHKEERBEANRITHES
= o

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2011 is calculated
at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year. PRC taxation represents PRC foreign enterprise
income tax for the year and is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax jurisdictions

in the PRC.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

6 FEBRIRMATHRBR(E)

6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(continued)
(b) FREXHMeHHAMIZ AR EETER  (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
AR applicable tax rates:
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
R AT Profit before taxation 145,149 110,386
RREMETEAEEER Notional tax on profit before taxation,
BSRAEER R ERE calculated at the rate applicable to
AlE A B & RIE profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 23,950 18,214
AR R e R Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 789 1,100
BEFBBANTIEZE Tax effect of non-taxable income (3,447) (2,195)
NEEARMERE A EHEE Tax effect of current year's tax losses not
WETER 2 recognised 217 16
REEDFATBERERD Tax effect of previously unrecognised
AN IEE RN IETE tax losses utilised this year — 2)
RERNEERFER Tax effect of other temporary differences
W IETE not recognised 42 63
REE D AERERER Tax effect of previously unrecognised
MNEMEREENHRIBEZE other temporary difference utilised this year (72) -
LA E A E R Over-provision in respect of prior years (172) (95)
Hth Others — 16
EBRBIES Actual tax expense 21,307 17,117

76 ABRERBERRAF
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RBEF AR BMEGDF161ETI R E

7 Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of

EMeaT the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
2R URHB A Bkt —3-—-%
ESHe AENAE MERL BRI A k]
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary  Share-based scheme 2011
fee in kind bonus payments contributions Total
Tr Tr T Tr Tr T
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
(B=E(iv))
(note (iv))
HITES Executive Directors
BB EE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 4,526 3,323 - 12 7,981
BRABK 5 Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,492 1,329 269 12 322
Bt e Ms Mak Yee Mei 120 1,249 399 140 12 1,920
FHITES Non-executive Director
REEAEE Mr Ng Chi Keung 150 - - - = 150
BYFHTES Independent
Non-executive Directors
PREEF S A4 Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
SIS L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
BERSE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 140 - - - = 140
FIREEE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 200 - - - - 200
1,140 7,267 5,051 409 36 13,903

S G T T . S SR
N
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7 EEM&(E)

7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

e 2H WBRH A Bkt —-2-%%
ESHe ANEDNE MERAL ERNXA R g
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary Share-based scheme 2010
fee in kind bonus payments contributions Total
i Fr i T i r
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
(£ (iv)
(note (iv))
HITES Executive Directors
ERGEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 4,525 2,840 - 12 7,497
BRAERSE A Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,389 1,135 395 12 3,051
e farth B () Ms Mak Yee Mei (note (i)) 30 943 260 12 12 1,257
RS ST AE (M FEG) Mr Ng Chi Keung (note (ii)) 98 1,009 430 - 9 1,546
FHITES Non-executive Director
R AR S A (MFREG)) Mr Ng Chi Keung (note (i) 2 - - - - 2
BIYFHITES Independent
Non-executive Directors
BRESF e 4 Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
IS+ Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
BRR&E Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 140 - - - - 140
FIRE LA Mr Peter Wan Kam To 110 - - - - 110
P12 08 5 A (KT EEGiN)) Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai (note (ii) 70 - - - - 70
1,010 7,866 4,665 407 45 13,993
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7 EEM&(E)

7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

Mz - ERZE—SF—A—BEEZF note () : Appointed on 1 January 2010

Miati) : ER T —ZF— A —HBENTE note (i) : Re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive
EHRAERIENITES Director on 1 January 2010

Fizk) - ER—FZENFNAZTEBRE note (iii) : Retired on 27 August 2009

iz AR D BEM N REREAR note (iv) : Share-based payments represent the estimated value
AIMEREF ISR TESERED of share options granted to the Directors under the
HEABE - SEBERENEBRSR Company’s share option scheme. The value of these
FRBA5E 1 (o) (i) Pk 21 AN S B LA AR 15 share options is measured according to the Group's
EWMONINRZISNETHERNE accounting policies for share-based payment transactions
WREZIBERE - B2 HRERE as set out in note 1(o)(ii) and, in accordance with that
Pl ATHOZ T T i T AR E policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued
BITE A E RE R B 05 in previous years where grants of equity instruments are
o forfeited prior to vesting.
FRAELEMAEZNFERE BIEM Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
HTHERENTZTEEAMEE @ & terms and number of options granted, are disclosed
RESeREFEBRESE | —& under the paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the
FTEE24A © Directors’ Report and note 24.

BEEHMEAL 8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments

ERfUMleKeOALH  =U(ZF
—ZTF O RES - AENMEFE
EAMEE7 - HBEMU(ZT—ZTF : —

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2010: four) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

R ATHIBN S @zEmT other two individuals (2010: one individual) is as follows:
—E-—F —E-2F
2011 2010
T T
$'000 $'000
e kEMME Salaries and other emoluments 2,643 1,685
LARR D R ERE R ST Share-based payments 135 204
RIREHEIGER Retirement scheme contributions 24 12
2,802 1,901

< X ¥y XR A X 4 ¥
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8 mEBM&AL(E) 8

M —F—FF : ()RS AL

Individuals with Highest Emoluments (continued)
The emoluments of the two individuals (2010: one individual)

WS EATHER with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

—E-—fF T

2011 2010

A AEL

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

£ 7% 1,000,0007T $0 - $1,000,000 1 -

1,000,0017c%1,500,0007T $1,000,001 — $1,500,000 - -

1,500,001 C%2,000,0007C $1,500,001 - $2,000,000 1 1

2 1

RER AEETEREANESKER
EeFHALMNMe(ZT—2F T
7C) - DA S|t 350 BE AN 52 [ =k AR 4 AN
BN B R RE) BRI E -

9 FLFEIERELRT 9

ARG EZBRREELEAENBE
—ZEBHMAKRRA MK REK N EF
58,421,0000( — & — T F: F 18
45,0007T) °

ANT] A S R4 FE Y BE

During the year, no emoluments (2010: $nil) were paid by
the Group to any of the Directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of $58,421,000 (2010: a
loss of $45,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount of the Company’s profit
for the year:

—E-——F —T-TF
2011 2010
Frx FT
$'000 $'000
AR D F B ERE A Amount of consolidated profit attributable
R RR RS to equity shareholders dealt with in the
i Al 58 Company’s financial statements 58,421 (45)
BEEIFTLH B A RS Write back of impairment losses
HRERT18 on interests in subsidiaries 14,746 38,114
AR RAEE A (B 5227 (b)) Company’s profit for the year (note 27(b)) 73,167 38,069

80 KPSEEBERAT
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(a) BRAFERNARAERMR

10 Dividends

attributable to the year

KA B (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

\

—E——fF —E-TF
2011 2010
S Tt
$'000 $'000
BEEREZANPEREGR Interim dividend declared and paid of
20.01(=Z=—Z4F : 18.01l) 20.0 cents (2010: 18.0 cents) per share 25,140 22,624
EEIR &8RRI B S Special interim dividend declared and
BRSO ZZE—ZF : &) paid of 8.0 cents (2010: nil) per share 10,056 -
RMEPRERERZEDIR Final dividend proposed after the end
NHEARR B FA%32.011l of the reporting period of 32.0 cents
—Z—FF :28.01l) (2010: 28.0 cents) per share 40,132 35,192
RIEBREREZHR DR Special final dividend proposed after
FERIRHARR B &A% 12.01L the end of the reporting period of
(ZE—ZF : ) 12.0 cents (2010: nil) per share 15,050 -
90,378 57,816

R E BRI EZR D IRERERE &
Ry Bl R B RSB, (el AR 7E R 25 D 4 Ry R

RAE-

(b) BR E—FREFE - ARAFEZENR
SATH AN AR R s SRR B BB

during the year

The final dividend and special final dividend proposed after
the end of the reporting period have not been recognised as
a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid

—E——fF —E-TF
2011 2010
Fr Fit
$'000 $'000
BRE—UBFE - WK Final dividend in respect of the
REEHERZH previous financial year, approved and
REAAR B EA%28.01L paid during the year, of 28.0 cents
—E—FF :28.01L) (2010: 28.0 cents) per share 35,203 35,192

+ ¥ X ¥k 4 X X ¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIES BT - BRPILUBEIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

10 BRR (&) 10 Dividends (continued)
(b) BRE—EIBFE TR AFEZMAEK (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
ST FER AR R AR R AV RR B (&) attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year (continued)
HEE—T-ZTF=A=1+—HILFE In respect of the final dividends for the year ended 31 March
WARHKREME - £ LFEYBHRERIE 2010, there is a difference of $11,000 between the final
B2 ) R HA AR B B AR AR R RO R S ) B dividends disclosed in the last annual financial statements and
B2 MM Z%E11,0000T @ RIEEZ(E amount approved and paid during the year which represents
Bk DB P & 5L F A& A B BE &9 AR 0 FAE dividends attributable to shares repurchased before the closing
TiEERDBP B FERTEER date of the register of members and new shares issued upon
EMBEZITHRAFFE ABGORE the exercise of share options before the closing date of the
register of members.
11 SREF 11 Earnings Per Share
(a) BIREKRZEF (a) Basic earnings per share
REENFBRERBFZERBARAE The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
i P R %5 AR R 15 & $1123,842,0007T profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
—ZE—FF :93,269,0007T) * UAKE Company of $123,842,000 (2010: $93,269,000) and the
17 E @ AR /9 h0#E 19 #0125,662,000 weighted average of 125,662,000 ordinary shares (2010:
(== —=4 :125,679,0000% ) 5t & 125,679,000 shares) in issue during the year, calculated as
LU follows:
BRI T8 Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
=%  -T-%%
2011 2010
R EE & &R
Number of Number of
shares shares
TR F&
‘000 ‘000
RO A—BHEZETEBER Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 125,687 125,587
TR R Effect of share options exercised 343 92
EEROHFE Effect of shares repurchased (368) -
R=A=+—HNTER Weighted average number of
hniEF9E ordinary shares at 31 March 125,662 125,679

RPEREBRAF
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) 11 Earnings Per Share (continued)
(b) SREFRF

(b) Diluted earnings per share

tﬂxﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬂmﬁiﬁaﬁ’&_ TimRELS The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
Pi% B8 & 46 34 123,842,000 0( — 2 —F the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
£ :93,269,0007T ) * WA Rt E @A Company of $123,842,000 (2010: $93,269,000) and the
DAE F 19 127,151,000 ( = F — = weighted average number of ordinary shares of 127,151,000

1 125,913,0000%):tEWT - shares (2010: 125,913,000 shares), calculated as follows:

BB I8 (8 ) -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

—E——-F —T-EF
2011 2010
gvig =] Min e E
Number of Number of
shares shares
TR T
‘000 ‘000
RETHERERRBTN Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T AR AN 1 8L used in calculating basic earnings per share 125,662 125,679
?ﬁ?ﬁﬁzﬁ?}f$“ﬂﬁ’ﬁ%% Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
féd’i‘ﬂ_uﬂa ET under the Company’s share option scheme
2= for nil consideration 1,489 234
Rt EEREEAT H Weighted average number of ordinary shares
AR N 19 B used in calculating diluted earnings per share 127,151 125,913
12 ZEBEwE 12 Segment Reporting

AEEFBMEMESE - EEEE
NHPBEERE  RERER  WIZREMR
kit ERE DEMEEDE - R&E
EEBETATRERSSE - B@F
NEAEESRETHERABRAS
WERRGER  UEHETERS A
RERBETE A - - XEEERE

EAEKR AT H®RE DI mETE FFET
BHREEDES -

— BRER AN BERBLERE
JE o

— THERE: AOBETELERE
JE o

The Group manages its businesses by two geographical
divisions, namely Hong Kong restaurant and the PRC
restaurant, which are organised by both products and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

- Hong Kong restaurant: this segment operates fast food
restaurants in Hong Kong.

— The PRC restaurant: this segment operates fast food

restaurants in PRC.

Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
investment properties and include corporate expenses.

X % £ > 4 ¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIESHTHA - TRBIABETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12 FEEWE (&)
(a) DHEE

12 Segment Reporting (continued)
(a) Segment results

AEBERETHRERABRTIIEER
REERE D BHEAE - AEFED
REALETHHEERDE -

DEEEHRE D ERUA NS HRIAE L
DEFIELEMRATE A BRELD
MOEEMELNTEXHEHEERM

E o

RERGHA D RN E - ReEHB
BRI EIEE - Pl R T H(ER
RBEFIRENIEINEER) R

DEEEHREDH ©

EEERTWIER Y EENEND BE
o BeBRHARKA(RRERE
Hip D B A MEEKRN(BRERY
A BTHRAN - BE - ZMMFTE)
HDEERN - DHZENRFEELR
EBBRET 2ERTMERECE
1% WRIERE R R ETETT

AREE S ETRERA B L RS
EREMH BEENER -

BEZZ—FRk-F-FTF=A=+
—RLEFE  ARESSETHEEA
SMEABAEERED HLHOER - A
HHETERD R D BRRFE - &
BT e

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit before
taxation. Items not specifically attributable to individual
segments, such as corporate expenses (mainly costs of
supporting functions that are provided by head office), are
not allocated to the reporting segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost, labour
cost, rent and rates and depreciation). The inter-segment
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms
and were priced with reference to prevailing market prices
and in the ordinary course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported or used by the
Group’s most senior executive management.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Group's most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2011
and 2010 is set out below.

84 KPSEEBERAT
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12 FEE|E (2

(a) DMEE(H)

)

12 Segment Reporting (continued)

(@) Segment results (continued)

EBEE TEEE EftAi g
Hong Kong restaurant ~ The PRC restaurant Other segments Total
-E2--% -Z%-%3f -3--F Z%-3F -I--F Z3-3F -I--F Z3-%3f
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
i i r i i i r i
$'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §000 §'000 §'000
RENREFHRMA Revenue from external customers 1,497,402 1,407,414 162,664 147,697 10,913 12942 1,670,979 1,568,053
REEHBHMA Inter-segment revenue - - - - (5098)  (5705)  (5098)  (5705)
REMDHA Reportable segment revenue 1,497,400 1407414 162,664 147,697 5,815 7237 1665881 1,562,348
HEAPER Reportable segment profit 109,323 92,508 18,815 11,181 7,436 9644 135574 113333
FEHA Interest income 1,171 633 164 75 - - 1,335 708
FITETNHEER Interest expense on bank loans 1,096 852 380 364 - - 1,476 1216
REMEH Depreciation and amortisation 55,239 48122 5,639 5,324 1,132 998 62,010 54,444
EERF A ERE Impairment losses on
other receivables - 205 - - - - - 205
ETEERNRESE Impairment losses on fixed assets 2,648 6,260 4,184 1,129 - - 6,832 7,389

;¥ X R 4 X ¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESHTHA - TRBIABETITR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12 FEEWE (&)
(b) ¥RE D #BE A EY I BR

RPEREBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

12 Segment Reporting (continued)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
S T
$'000 $'000
R Profit
BB ATIR & 9 3B A Reportable segment profit before taxation 135,574 113,333
HEREFENER Gain on disposal of non-current
BEEMRE assets held for sale 15,633 -
REEILAEENEE Compensation paid to a landlord upon
K (E early termination of a tenancy lease (147) -
BRTE=FEF#EA—EE Compensation received on granting
AT ITIR i W A i (2 right of access to a third party
for construction work performed
in part of a restaurant - 3,481
AR BEABROEM Change in fair value of other
EREBENARBEEED financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (624) (116)
wEMEMER Valuation gains on investment properties 6,019 3,743
ElEEEREEE Impairment losses on fixed assets (6,832) (7,389)
fRENH B A R B 1858 Net loss on dissolution of subsidiaries (2,145) -
AP AFER Unallocated corporate expenses (2,329) (2,666)
BRI AT AR & s A Consolidated profit before taxation 145,149 110,386
= &k (c) Geographic information

TRIEBROAREKRBINBEFH
WA R (AR B B EEEMEE(1E
EFERBEE]MMELELR - EFH
et R IR IRE IR RIS S B m O3 3G
g WBREEEE  HEHFRBDE
ENMENRERZEENERATEL
g WENEE BEEFRBDEEN
A AR IR E D L2/ 2 E i 3 3

7 e

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’'s fixed assets and goodwill
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset in the case of fixed assets, and
the location of the operation to which they are allocated in
the case of goodwill.

x by X ¥ 4
e —
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12 FEEWE ()
(0 HEEF (&)

12 Segment Reporting (continued)
(c) Geographic information (continued)

REMDEFHBA BEERBER
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—2--F ZT-TF ZEZ2--F _ZT-FF
2011 2010 2011 2010
Tr Fr T Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B (i) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 1,499,565 1,410,924 317,452 312,894
F The PRC 166,316 151,424 83,588 86,999
1,665,881 1,562,348 401,040 399,893
13 BEEE 13 Fixed Assets
(a) N&HE (a) The Group
HEeRE
BELH HEnE FHERRN
figgn YRIE HhEE it RENE  tHRERS 5
Interests in
leasehold
land held for
Leasehold OWn Use under
land and Leasehold Other Investment operating
buildings ~ improvements assets Sub-total properties leases Total
r r r T T r r
§000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §000 §000 §'000
HAGfE: Cost or valuation;
R-ZENEMA-A At 1 April 2009 9,604 244,486 347 44 688,514 41135 - 729,649
EE Bxchange adjustments 19 6 §7 174 - - 174
g Additions 19,103 49,705 83,036 151,844 - 8,09 159,942
il Disposals - (3278)) {2514 (75.2%) - - (75,2%)
E\RREENIRDER Transfer to non-current assets
(B3t 17) held fo sal (note 17) (1,750) - - (1,750 (2800 - (10557)
ELE Surplus on revaluation - - - - 378 - 378
N-5-58fz1-H At 31 March 2010 107,969 161477 388,033 157419 4078 8,09 807,655
ftx: Representing:
i Cost 107,969 261477 388,033 157419 - 8,098 165,577
[tE--5-5% Veluaton - 2010 - - - - 42,78 - 10018
107,969 261477 388,033 757479 4078 8,09 807,655

I N
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESHTHA - TRBIABETITR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13 BERE(E)

(a) ANEE (&)

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@) The Group (continued)

HEgRE
BELH HEnE FEERn
il 3 YRIE AfEE it RENE  tHEEES g
Interests in
leasehold
land held for
Leasehold OWn use under
land and Leasehold Other Investment operating
buildings  improvements assets Sub-total properties leases Total
r n n i i r n
§1000 §000 §000 000 §'000 §1000 §000
ZiffiE BERAE: Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment;
R-ZENEMA-A At 1 April 2009 3 468 184,695 204,888 422,051 - - 422,051
EiE Bxchange adjustments 8 4 £ % - - 9
ERNEREE Charge for the year 2648 355 28329 5232 - m 54,484
HERRE Writen back on disposal - 326%) (39,06) (71.905) - - (71,905)
B \FERENRDEE Transfer to non-current assets
(HH17) held for sale (note 17) 3310 - - (3,310 - - (3,310)
Bk Impairment losses - 4,394 29% 7,389 - - 7389
RZE-FEf=1-H At 31 March 2010 31,814 179,68 197,051 408,551 - iy 408,763
RanE Net book value:
HZE-TE=A=1-8 At 31 March 2010 76,155 81,791 190,982 348,928 42078 7,886 398,892
RREEBERA A

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

xX XA ¥ X B A
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13 BERE(E)
(a) A&E(&)

13 Fixed Assets (continued)

(@) The Group (continued)

DR
fEH HEnE KEBRN
ilE3) YRIE BftgE Nt RENE  IHEERR g
Interests in
leasehold
[and held for
Leasehold OWn use under
land and Leasehold Other Investment operating
buildings  improvements assets Sub-total properties leases Total
n n i i i r i
§'000 §1000 §1000 §000 §000 §1000 §1000
HAGfE: Cost or valuation:
W-E-TERA-R At 1 April 2010 107,969 161477 388,033 157479 4078 8,09 807,655
EiER Bxchange adjustments 04 114 1487 2885 - - 2885
g Additions 2 2429 a1 66,486 - - 66,486
il Disposals - B1,114) 0212 (51,326) - - (51,326)
EXAB (IH130) Reclassifcation (note 13(e) 5730 - - 5,730 5,730) - -
EfRS Surplus on revaluation - - - - §,019 - 6,019
N-E-—F=A=1-H At 31 March 2011 113994 255,781 n4n 781,254 4367 8,09 831,719
f&: Representing;
i Cost 113994 255,781 4M4n 781,254 - 8,09 789,352
[fE--3--F Valuation - 2011 - - - - 1237 - 10367
113,994 255,781 M4n 781,254 42367 8,09 831,719
ZitE BERAE: Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment;
N-E-TERA-RB At 1 April 2010 31814 179,686 197,051 408,551 - m 408763
EiEE Bxchange adjustments 143 574 53 1,249 - - 1,249
ERNEREE Charge for the year 2867 262 32,710 61,799 - o1 62010
HEREE Writen back on disposal - (30.481) (16,699) @717 - - 47,174
HEEE Impairment losses - 2,160 467 683 - - 683
N-E-—F=f=1-H At 31 March 2011 34,804 178,161 1821 431,257 - 43 431,680
RERE: Net book value:
RZE-—£=f=1-H At 31 March 2011 79170 77620 193207 349,997 42367 1675 400,039

39



90

B R MR
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(BR3EmF M

- BRGAEEFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13
(a)

RPEREBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEERE(E)
REE (F)
AEBYERALEEOIHT

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@) The Group (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the
Group is as follows:

—E——fF —ZT—TF
2011 2010
T T
$'000 $'000
HETHMEEY  BEE Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
ERANREE Long-term leasehold in Hong Kong 61,721 61,721
ERABNHEEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 19,124 19,103
ERBEINGFEREE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 33,149 27,145
113,994 107,969
REYE  BREE Investment properties, at valuation
ERABNHEEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 11,877 6,898
EEBRINNFREEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 30,490 35,180
42,367 42,078
UggHesFaAntiis Interests in leasehold land held for own
o EAE use under operating leases, at cost
ERBNHEEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,098 8,098

REBAAEREMEER T ——F =
A=+ —BEESWAFEILLAWESN
BETH#LERFTELARMERNGT
HEEETER - BEMELHBEILA
EMT-BEENEERARET - HE
DETABEMEMEBTEREE  H
FrigEMENRmELMAERERAES
MHENHELS ~FENEHAR
6,019,0007T( — & — & 4 : 3,743,000
TO)ERTAGZAE W ER ©

HBEEREEM  &RE - SRE -7
B BRRGRVRBENTIXEAM
g5

(b) All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at

31 March 2011 on an open market value basis calculated
by reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential. The valuations were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who
have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. The revaluation surplus
of $6,019,000 (2010: $3,743,000) for the year has been
credited to the consolidated income statement.

Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial purchases
of cutlery and utensils.

x by X ¥ 4
e —
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13 EEZFE(E)

(d)

(e)

(f)

RER AEBEBEEREETOEE
BREXE THETELDEETE
ERATUEEEE - RIFGE - FREL
& E & E M IR £ %8 5 R (86,832,000
JL(ZZ—Z4 : 7,389,0007T) °

A4 BRE A i R AR IR IT IR K 10%
—E-TE 0% FEENEEEE
EREERER -

RER - AP BPHEEETBEFEREE
B 55,730,000t - EBHKRED
¥EAHELWERY  AALXEER
B —ZFNA—BRBREEZMER
EEIREBEEBRAZ -

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(d) During the year, the Group’s management identified several

branches which continued to under-perform and estimated
the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of those branches.
Based on these estimates, the carrying amount of the fixed
assets was written down by $6,832,000 (2010: $7,389,000)
during the year.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the
fixed assets’ value in use, determined using a discount rate
of 10% (2010: 10%).

During the year, a property with a carrying value amounting
to $5,730,000 held in the PRC under a medium-term lease
was transferred from investment properties to leasehold land
and buildings because the Group has used the property for
its own fast food operation since 1 September 2010.

RZZE——F=A=+—H EAAXSE (/) At31March2011, the net book value of properties pledged as

EEH oM E AR FERITEEERNY security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of

FHRTE F{E 548,259,000c(ZE—F the Group amounted to $48,259,000 (2010: $68,813,000).

% : 68,813,0007T) °

() AEENGEEMERBIRENE - EXL  (g) The Group leases out investment properties under operating

MENMFSH—FE=F  JFHEKLEH leases. The leases initially run for one to three years. None of

E/TEasAEE AEERENA the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group’s total future

BHROGEMHEERREBRNKERE minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
RGBT leases are receivable as follows:

—E-——F —E-EF

2011 2010

T T

$'000 $'000

—FRQ Within 1 year 3,270 3,197

—FHRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 1,744 3,600

5,014 6,797

;¥ X ¥ 4 X 4 ¥
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

14 HE 14 Goodwiill
—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
SFo Fr
$'000 $'000
A - RMA—BE=A Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001

=+-8

BABENRSENETNREN S

AEBREEHRMEB DO EEHE
FRIHERONBESEHETIT -

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU") identified according to the area of operation and
business segment as follows:

—E——F —E—TF

2011 2010

Fx FIT

$'000 $'000

BREERK—-F Restaurant operation — The PRC 1,001 1,001

ReELBEITHNRIKRESEIREER
BEAE EIERREEESRE
MAFHEBENRSREME - BB
TEHMENRESRER AN X
YEHEMT - IR EAATEBZIREELE
TR E RN RIFIIERE -

AEEREENEIERR

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates
stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

—E——F —T—TF

2011 2010

EIES Gross margin 14% 14%
BRX Growth rate 5% 5%
IR = Discount rate 10% 10%

E.EEJE$ETF?3E%$DTE§+$%%§J?&FXETE
BEME - FrRAOMEFHERERR
TTEREPME TN — B0 ﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬁéﬁﬁ

fﬁﬁﬁ'Jm}iﬂﬁiﬁFﬂiﬁ‘i\Eﬂj“—#

REVERILATITIR X -

92 KPSEEBERAT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectation for market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

x by X ¥ 4
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16

17

RIEELFMKRE

15 Investments in Subsidiaries

¥ NN
The Company

—E——F —E-TF

2011 2010

S FIT

$'000 $'000

SE MR - KA Unlisted shares, at cost 81,308 79,808
JE U B /BB A B FTE Amounts due from subsidiaries 258,834 302,061
340,142 381,869
B B E Less: Impairment losses (56,911) (71,657)
283,231 310,212

(a) EWHBARREAERT - A
BEBMNFREIRMBE o

by RZFE——F=A=+—-HHEE
HIE A R IR RS R B 5 3k 55135
EEI1378 o

Hft & p e E
HbeMEERKETNERBBNER
HERARE  ZZBEXSREBEREH
BZABRBTERREEENRR - A
AR S RRFRE - A2REBERITH
EIFRBNFBEREFEHE -

(@) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
recoverable on demand and interest-free.

(b) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2011 are
set out on pages 135 to 137 of the financial statements.

16 Other Financial Asset
Other financial asset represents a principal protected structured
note placed with financial institution which is subject to call
option at the discretion of the financial institution before the
maturity dates. Interest is receivable on a quarterly basis and
calculated at variable interest rates with reference to London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR").

BFESEMERBEE 17 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
S Tz
2011 2010
T Tt
$'000 $'000
S T AR EY (H5E13(@)) Leasehold land and buildings (note 13(a)) = 4,447
WEWE(MFE133)) Investment properties (note 13(a)) = 2,800
- 7,247

RAEEEEEREHEETHE L
MEEYRLEMHER  ZEWER
—T-TF=-A=1+—HEIEEEH
ENFERBEE _T—ZTFMWA_-+
TH oAEERFE=HIIY T HESE
E  BEEERZR _-_ZE—TFX
A=+HERK  mMAEABLEKREA
15,633,0007C(HI5E4) »

At 31 March 2010, certain leasehold land and buildings
and investment properties were presented as non-current
assets held for sale following the decision of the Group’s
management to dispose of these properties. A sale and
purchase agreement was entered into with a third party on 22
April 2010. The sale and purchase was completed on 30 June
2010 with a gain on disposal of $15,633,000 (note 4).

< X ¥y XR A X 4 ¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIEZAER - BRIGAEEFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

18 #K 18 Inventories
(@) SrEFBRARMANEE R (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:
AW
The Group
—E2——5F —E-ZF
2011 2010
5 ¥
$'000 $'000
B &R Food and beverages 29,408 17,629
JHFEM - BEME R Consumables, packing materials
Efh31E and other sundry items 3,679 4,539
33,087 22,168

(o) RS/ HNEFEBEANMT :

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

e L —z-T%
2011 2010
7 T
$'000 $'000
EEFEMNEREReME Carrying amount of inventories sold 469,547 437,027
FEMR Write down of inventories 282 337
469,829 437,364
19 FE U AR 5% F0 B At BB e &k 19 Trade and Other Receivables
rEH AR

The Group The Company
“®2——% -T-TF -B-—5 —T-FF
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fr T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
JEUREBR KA E M EUER  Trade and other debtors 7,896 9,059 = -
BEffeke Rental deposits paid 16,489 10,269 = -
B MBER Deposits and prepayments 23,400 19,820 225 207
FEUS KT A RIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 89,201 61,912
47,785 39,148 89,426 62,119

94 ABRERBERRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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19 FEUGARFR I th YRR (2) 19 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

(a) BRER DT (a) Ageing analysis
R 2 B SR A FE LS BR R0 L i E W 3R & Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors
PEERWER(EHRREER) H (net of allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice
REZEHFENRESTAOT - date, with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the
reporting period:
rEE
The Group

—2—-F —TFF
2011 2010
T T
$'000 $'000
—&=+1+H 1 to 30 days 3,104 4,055
=t—=AtA 31 to 90 days 169 554
ht+—=—8N\+H 91 to 180 days 21 93
—BNAt+t—&2=/,+thaA 181 to 365 days 1 3
3,295 4,705
AEBEBZETHHERS T RBUR The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
DREE AEENTGTRREEBNE D The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 75 days to certain

BEENT=THZtTHhHENEEH - customers to which the Group provides catering services.

(b) FENERFRE (b) Impairment of trade debtors
JE W AR AR B 1R & S A AR R A Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded
B BEAKERRKEIEHSTEA] L using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
MRER - BERESEEEEFH that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
EWERR(RMIEE() - BEZZ—F impairment loss is written off against the trade debtor directly
M—E—ZEFZA=Z+—BILZFE " (see note 1(j)). During the years ended 31 March 2011 and
2N 55 [0 A 5% 15 48 B R WA R B RO 2010, the Group did not record any material impairment
BE1E - losses in respect of its trade debtors.

< X ¥ X K + X KX ¥ 5
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

19 FEURRAMA B (ZF)
(o) SERER AR
FEME R SR & HbAR AR E B0 FE M R SR AR

19 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither

O individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
TEE

The Group
—E——fF —E-TF
2011 2010
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
FEs BRI (A Neither past due nor impaired 2,626 3,912
w DR —1E A Less than 1 month past due 634 343
BME—Z==1{EA 1 to 3 months past due 30 399
BHI= 2= XA A 3 to 6 months past due 4 48
BN E+ @A 6 to 12 months past due 1 3
669 793
3,295 4,705

S 0 E 5 A 8 ) M B AR B TS B3R
BREHRNENEEEE -

2B HIE SEIR (B A FE UK AR SR B - = ok B
AEBBRUEHERN —RBULE
F-EBRERR REAEER AR
EEERAEBE A BERDER
AR B E - PrASZASE L ET R RUE
i o AEBEYERELERMIHEFE
i e

(d) AR B FrA R B R R IR K
A AEREBARKLOEER

RPEREBRAF
96 FAIRWOOD HO/EDINGS LIMITED X ‘-J\ %" x ﬁ +

=

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

All amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are
unsecured, recoverable on demand and interest-free.

),



20 RITERMRS

20 Bank Deposits and Cash

AEE FIN/NE|
The Group The Company
—E——F —E-TF —E——F —E-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010
Tr Tt T Tt
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RITIF Deposits with banks 160,919 96,649 — -
RITFEHRMR S Cash at bank and in hand 92,791 113,393 222 205
HSARR R TR Bank deposits and cash
RITERFES in the statement of
financial position 253,710 210,042 222 205
B BEFRIRITER Less: Pledged bank deposits (2,716) (2,550)
RARESMERMARM  Cash and cash equivalents
REMREEEY in the consolidated
cash flow statement 250,994 207,492

R-ZTE——F=A=+—H8  —(B7
BFZARBEEAPEIEANER
309,0007C( =& —Z 4 : 1,447,0007T)
£ AR ITIE 2,716,000 ( —ZFE —ZF
4 1 2,550,00070) fEAIEIF o

21 FESTRRSR TR fh FE 1 3%

Bank deposits of $2,716,000 (2010: $2,550,000) are pledged
to a bank to secure a loan of $309,000 as at 31 March 2011
(2010: $1,447,000) borrowed by an independent third party
food processing contractor.

21 Trade and Other Payables

AEE PN
The Group The Company
—E——F5 ZEB-TF =—Z--F5 ZIZT-ZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fr T Fx Tt
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FEBR R ERTE A Creditors and accrued expenses 217,947 222,882 1,736 1,339
Bk Ee Rental deposits received 873 488 — -
FEASTBY B8 R B 30E Amounts due to subsidiaries = - 27,875 27,875
LI RURET 4R Financial liabilities measured
BE at amortised cost 218,820 223,370 29,611 29,214
TSI A Derivative financial instruments
(P =E28(a)ii) (note 28(a)(iii)) 740 116 — -
219,560 223,486 29,611 29,214

< X ¥ X K 4+ X X ¥

97



B R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIEZAER - BRIGAEEFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 ERERRMEMEAR(E)

i A5 K 4t 8 A5 BE R0 B A B A5 3R (4
RO B A R ZUE) R AT R — A U1
BHERBUA - AR -

21 Trade and Other Payables (continued)

All of the other trade and other payables (including amounts
due to subsidiaries) are expected to be settled or recognised
as income or are repayable within one year.

F SR BAOR # FE A~ BR RKRD EL B A5 3 & Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based

REERMER  HREZAHFER

on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of

BRECOITIAT the end of the reporting period:
ARE

The Group
e —z-z
2011 2010
Tt Fi
$'000 $'000
—Z&=1H 1 to 30 days 66,804 70,850
=t—=Ah+H 31 to 90 days 992 1,577
h+—Z2—8/N\+H 91 to 180 days 1,100 89
—BA\+—&2=Fa,1tHH 181 to 365 days 53 86
—F AL Over one year 961 1,054
69,910 73,656

RRBFTA RN E QR RIS &K
;2B WERREBNRER

All amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

22 SRITHER 22 Bank Loans
RITERNEESELTAOT The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as
follows:
TEE
The Group
—E——fF —ZT—TF
2011 2010
T T
$'000 $'000
(E51)
(restated)
REBEE Current liabilities
RITEHAE SR BB Current portion of term loans from bank 10,908 3,589
RITEHE IR ESK Non-current portion of term loans from
EEAIERNEE S bank repayable on demand — 5,686
10,908 9,275
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEERITE M IERIER D Non-current portion of other bank loans 31,018 35,990

98 KPSEEBERAT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22 SRITER(2)

R-ZE——F=A=+—0 " RITEXK

22 Bank Loans (continued)
At 31 March 2011, the bank loans were repayable as

BEFKENT - follows:
EE
The Group
=F——F —T-TF
2011 2010
5 F
$'000 $'000
—FAREEEN T Current portion of term loans due
BRI BIHERE 5 for repayment within one year 10,908 3,589
—FRIBMEENEIHRER Term loans due for repayment after one year:
—FREMFA After 1 year but within 2 years 5,023 10,658
MERERFR After 2 years but within 5 years 19,158 19,952
hERE After 5 years 6,837 11,066
31,018 41,676
IRITE B Total bank loans 41,926 45,265

RZZB——F=A=+—8 RITER

At 31 March 2011, the bank loans were secured as

FERBEROT - follows:
REE
The Group
—EB——F —T-TF
2011 2010
ST Tt
$'000 $'000
RITER Bank loans
—HIEMA — Secured 27,430 30,059
— A — Unsecured 14,496 15,206
41,926 45,265
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22 BITER(E)
MN-_B——F=A=+—H "  tiut
RITERMBITBE I UAREBRD
YIS VE AR (FIEE13(F) o

22 Bank Loans (continued)
2 At 31 March 2011, certain of the above bank loans were
f

FaN

7 secured by charges on properties of the Group (note 13(f)).

—

>
37|
[5]
>~
AL
[=]

AEEOMYRITERBHFAREET
BRAMBARKRL RNROE - TT1A1E
B MEROERNESRBBRI LN
fERLHEF - HAKBERRZY  EF
RAOBERAREREE - AEEETE
HERERBTHERY -

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group's statement of
financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants.

AEEERERESRRAFBEHNM

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk

#28(a)i) e R=ZT——F=ZA=+—
A SEEREHECHAEERENR
KZF—FTF8|) -

are set out in note 28(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2011, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2010: None).

1 OO KPSEEBERAT
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23

24

& 58 kg #
AEBEIZBEB(CRBIMERTRE S BF
IR E  RREBEEBREGERDDIR
FEEANEE  RIBHMELESA
g([aEesrEl)) - BETEE—E
REFRFENRGTE - HBINZFEAE
2o RipRESE BEINARES
AR IR E B R A B H5%[A &t &l 1F
H3k - B ArER AR £/R /320,000
7T o RGBT ABERFTEIF -

AEERBERIMBRERNES =
REBEWSEHERIERZINGENE
b 5E HBURIRET BV IRE -

L@ nlEnSERnNRXS
REARBR-_ZZ-_FAAT/\BK
MR R EEERENBR
AEAARRSEMERARNESR(E
EIEMTEZTRBUIFATES )T
Al fE BRI MEEMA - REA - KK &
AN RYSRIRGHER - BE - &M
B EERBERMEEBHEXBERE
ARBEARR D - HEBNSERT
JIZIERH&SE  ()RDEE : ()R
BRERXTEME R ERIAERARE
KT AT E - RN B Z B
BETHHABEEXAERIMEA
WERARMOBAD FHRHE - RES
SETYNBRNBRERORRIA -
BT 81 E IR AR TTE AT TR
FENRIEHR - FHEABRETEE
PR 1 AN A B E A o

23 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
September 2002 under which the Directors are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director)
or any employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any
consultant, agent, representative, adviser, supplier of goods or
services, customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture
partner to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price which shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; and (iii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before
an option can be exercised under the share option scheme.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company.

;¥ X K 4 X 4 ¥
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U UESRENDLKRGEERHOIH

(a)

(%)

PATR R & R 1R T 1 BEOHE A R SR A M
- MBBRESEBEERIMN KNG

24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during
the year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by

=N physical delivery of shares:
HE BREHE ITEEMRRR BRESQHR
Number of Contractual
Date instruments Vesting conditions life of options
RYTEENHERE
Options granted to Directors:
- ZZEThFWANE 1,000,000 AR-ZZE-TFMNA—BE 7.0%F
—E-RNF=A=1+—H
HM D HETTE
— on 8 April 2009 1,000,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period from
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016
- —_Z2—ZEF=H—H 400,000 AR=ZE——F—H—H=ZE 6.84F
—E-RE+ZA=+—H
HifE o BEAT I
— on 1 March 2010 400,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.8 years
during the period from
1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016
R REBRE
Options granted to employees:
- ZZEThFMANRE 800,000 IR-ZE-TFMNARRE 6.0%F
—E—tFMAMA
AR A BT
— on 6 April 2009 800,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.0 years
during the period from
5 April 2010 to
4 April 2017
- ZZZNFMANAR 3,220,000 AR-ZZE—ZFNA—-HBZE 7.06
—E-RF=ZA=+—H
HiE o A EAfT(E
— on 8 April 2009 3,220,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years

1 02 ARERBERRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

during the period from
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016

xX XA ¥ X B A
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A TREZFER TREEN
- FTEBRERSEEEE Ikt

CIE-))

24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during

the year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by
physical delivery of shares: (continued)

HEH BREHE 1TEMRR BIRES NHIR
Number of Contractual
Date instruments Vesting conditions life of options
- ZEThFRANA 100,000 IR-ZZE-TFMNA—HE 6.9
—E-RNF=A=+—H
HED DET®
— on 4 May 2009 100,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.9 years
during the period from
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016
- ZZETNFLA+HE 200,000 AR-Z-—ZF+H—HE 6.74
—E-RERA=TH
HifE o A EATT(E
— on 10 July 2009 200,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.7 years
during the period from
1 July 2010 to
30 June 2016
- —ET-TFEFT_A+tR 50,000 AR=—ZF——F+-_A+tRZE 5.94
- N\F+—A+RE
i o A HIFTIE
— on 17 December 2010 50,000 Exercisable in five tranches 5.9 years
during the period from
17 December 2011 to
16 November 2018
- ZE——%ZA+XH 100,000 ARZT——F-_A+<AZ 4.05
—E—+F=-A+HhHA
HED DET®
— on 16 February 2011 100,000 Exercisable in five tranches 4.0 years

during the period from
16 February 2012 to
15 February 2017

X ¥ X B 4 X X ¥
.
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UNEZEEDLUENRRERNOE S
(%)
(b) BREREE M FHITEENT

24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

options are as follows:

—EB——fF 2 -EF
2011 2010

nEEs BB T fE e
T8 £ ¢=] 1I(EE # A

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
T8 Fhx
‘000 ‘000

FERITE Outstanding at the beginning

of the year $6.44 5,720 $2.33 100
FARERT Granted during the year $10.92 150 $6.42 6,500
FABITE Exercised during the year $6.29 (505) $2.33 (100)
FRBE KK Lapsed during the year $6.56 (472) $6.26 (140)
FEANEFH Cancelled during the year Nil - $6.26 (640)
FERRITE Outstanding at the end of the year $6.58 4,893 $6.44 5,720
FRAITE Exercisable at the end of the year $6.30 527 - -

AEEARNBITERBIERTTE B BT
IR (E A8.667T( —ZF—F4F : 6.007T) °

NR-B——FE=A=+—BRTEBER
HERITEEA658TT( T —TF  6.44
JC) ¢ M ANKEFE I g E L HARR £4.89
F(ZE—FF :5929) -

(0 BRENLABEMBRR

ERRTERERSZRENIAEE
E2EMRTRBEENAAEENE -
M TRBERENEGT AL BERKE=S
AAHEELNTE - YHBERENEH
HIRBIEZ RN ARE - AN
EHEEE MR REITENTE -

RPEREBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was $8.66 (2010:
$6.00).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2011 had exercise price
of $6.58 (2010: $6.44) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 4.89 years (2010: 5.92 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a trinomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the trinomial lattice model.

x by X ¥ 4
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24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)

RZT—TF RZT——%F
+=A+tA —A+RH
B0l dibe BT e
Options Options
granted at granted at
17 December 16 February
2010 2011
BRENDIABEIRS Fair value of share options
and assumptions
RETEHB AR EE Fair value at measurement date $0.907T $0.977C
BB Share price $10.747T $10.907T
1T{EE Exercise price $10.967T $10.907T
KB = Expected volatility 19.67% - 25.92%  20.20% — 25.52%

BREHR (AIEA =B
RS P B9 0 P29 HARR )

TEHANG B K
AR FI &
(MINEES ZHRAER)

Option life (expressed as
weighted average life used
in the modelling under
trinomial lattice model)

Expected dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate

(based on Exchange Fund Notes)

3.00 years
6.49%

0.38% - 1.62%

3.00 years®F
6.49%

0.29% - 1.99%

BN E R RRIBE LN E R (AR
ROMETFARGBRSERHE)
I Btz R Al RS B R FEHIR K
MBENTAAERZCFELHERS
he EHREXRREEELRESFE -

TBRBABRKRNESD BB EM G
AR EE -

BREERE -BRBEFET - 5TE
PRERHREER TENAABERT
EET RERGN - BRENR T IAXAE
BRI S R RR I -

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividend yield is based on historical dividends.
Change in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with the share option
grants.

< X ¥y X R A X 4 ¥
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25 B ARARBOMER 25 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(a) FREFBIRNEKMI R AREFIE A ¢ (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents:

TEE
The Group
—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
RELHBENESHER Provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year 21,737 12,037
B EHFIEE Provisional Profits Tax paid (8,667) (9,722)
13,070 2,315
LA E RSB AR Balance of Profits Tax provision
relating to prior years 919 358
13,989 2,673
FPEITIR PRC taxation 289 538
TE B P — FE NS R i IE Amount of taxation expected
to be settled within one year 14,278 3,211
K& Representing:
AT Ug [B] A BRI Current tax recoverable (47) (8)
FERT AN ERBETE Current tax payable 14,325 3,219
14,278 3,211

ABRERBERRAF
1 06 FAIRWOOD HOtDINGS LIMITED X ‘%\ %’ x ﬁ + )
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25 MHIRARATHRBR(E)

(b) CRERELCHAEEEMALS
B A J IR R R AR T IR
(BE)/ BENAKID MARFEH

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

25 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position

W movements during the year are as follows:
rEE
The Group
BIBHERETE
REWMES HiTERHE B
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess
of investment of related
properties depreciation Total
Fx Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000
RE TS EMNELERE Deferred tax arising from:
RZZETNFMA—H At 1 April 2009 153 2,774 2,927
e lEm &Iz Charged to the consolidated
income statement 223 4,952 5,175
RZT—TF=A=+—H At 31 March 2010 376 7,726 8,102
AEH
The Group
HBER
BRI E AT RN
REMEER NWFERBE R Fz= wE
Depreciation
allowances Future
Revaluation in excess benefit
of investment of related of tax
properties depreciation losses Total
T T Fx T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RETHEEMELSE : Deferred tax arising from:
RN-ZT—TFMA—H At 1 April 2010 376 7,726 = 8,102
fEfrelmEF Charged/(credited) to the
B, (BE ) consolidated income statement 552 (147) (663) (258)
RZZE——F=A=+—H At 31 March 2011 928 7,579 (663) 7,844

+ ¥ X ¥k 4 X X ¥
B
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25 MBRARATHORBR(E)

(b) CHERECHAZEEMAIRE © (&)

25 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)

108

rEE
The Group
—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
Fr T
$'000 $'000
iR A MR R ERNIELET IR Net deferred tax assets recognised on the
BEFE consolidated statement of
financial position (663) (37)
e MR R ERNIELERIE Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on
AafEFE the consolidated statement of
financial position 8,507 8,139
7,844 8,102
() RIERHRELTIEE E ¢ (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
AEE
The Group
—B-—F —TTF
2011 2010
T T
$'000 $'000
AR ERER Deductible temporary differences 2,843
BE R AMTIERE Accumulated unused tax losses 40,563
R=A=+—H At 31 March 43,406

ARER B 5 R L LU TR B 18 Ko A T M8
RAEMAIRE R EREZRFRET
MEBEEE ARAKEERER/N
TE——F=A=+—H HEBARKEE
N T E B N K AT e IS AT A A Y
BRABEBRARREI LA - RIFBITH
K BEBBAEBERIRERRS -

RPEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the above tax losses and deductible temporary differences
of certain subsidiaries as management of the Group considers
that it is not probable as at 31 March 2011 that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislation.

xX X ¥ X KB
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26 #Efig 26 Provisions

rEE

The Group
—2——-F —E-TF
2011 2010
F5 Fi
$000 $'000
RERG & EHE Provision for long service payments 12,760 12,920

THEG RIS ERAER Provision for reinstatement costs
for rented premises 15,627 15,000
28,387 27,920
W BIEE [EBAMG] BEAMFIE  Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” (5,790) (4,335)
22,597 23,585
(a) REIRBELE®H (a) Provision for long service payments
rEE

The Group
—E2——F —E-TF
2011 2010
Fr T
$'000 $'000
RHA—H At 1 April 12,920 12,320
EFHRAEEINER Additional provisions made 608 1,285
BB AR ERH Provision utilised (768) (685)
R=A=+—8H At 31 March 12,760 12,920
REBEEBRBGRD)  AEEARET Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
BATEREERGZVELFNES is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
BEEBRS MRE X —EHIE - BN SF employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
RIZEREENEEFREFEME completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
WERMERBAREERAKGEIZE MK amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
BARSEHZNER - KEBYES and years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued
MAETEMBBREMEE © under the Group’s retirement schemes that are attributable

to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not
set aside any assets to fund the above.

> ¥y X Kk A+ X K ¥ 109
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26 #fi| (&) 26 Provisions (continued)
(b) HHEIGFTEVIEIER A% (b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises
rEE
The Group
—E2——F —T-TF
2011 2010
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
RmA—A At 1 April 15,000 14,534
BRI RN ER Additional provisions made 1,341 1,571
EBAEER Provision utilised (714) (1,105)
W=A=+—8 At 31 March 15,627 15,000
RIFHEZEFTIMBERZOGKR - K Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
S EANEAEE R FRR B landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
EHESH  BEKABAEEAE- premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant rental
EHit - AEECDRERAKEENEEKX agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate
IR EMFHED T84 - of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred.
27 BE kMR 27 Capital and Reserves
(a) NEHE (a) The Group
REEGE R T REAR I B H ) The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
HIHRAR RO TR - E DR A8 B KI4R of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
EREREHE - out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 48.

RPEEEBRAF
11 O FAIRWOOD HO/EDINGS LIMITED X ‘%\ %’ x ﬁ + )
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27 BEMGER (=)

27 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) A" &) (b) The Company
i3 A RHEE LNl Xl REER L]
Share Share  Contributed Capital Retained
capital premium surplus reserve profits Total
i T Tr i r T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZENFRA-A At 1 April 2009 125,587 225 44,260 2,668 188,233 360,973
HEREHENRS Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 10(b) - - - - (35,192) (35,192)
TERGET) Profit for the year - - - - 38,069 38,069
REEREHEINHRE Shares issued under share
option scheme 27000 100 133 - - - 233
R Issue expenses - 0 - - - o
WESEERNRNBERNRS  Equitysettled share-based transactions - % - 1,771 - 1867
TEEEERNES Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 10) - - - - (22,624) (22,624)
RZE-FF=A=1-H At 31 March 2010 125,687 450 44,260 4439 168,486 343,322
RZE-TERA-A At 1 April 2010 125,687 450 44,260 4439 168,486 343322
FEREHENRS Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 10(b) - - - - (35,203) (35,203)
TEERERNRS Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 10(a) - - - - (35,196) (35,196)
TERET Profit for the year - - - - 73,167 73,167
REERE2EHRN Shares issued under share
option scheme 27000 505 2,671 - - - 3,176
BIEE Issue expenses - (a4) - - - (44)
NEREEHURMAZENTS  Fouity-settled share-based transactions - 610 - 890 - 1,500
EERFRA Repurchase of own shares
-EfiEE - par value paid 27(c)i) (778) - - - - (778)
-BEEARZER ~ premium and transaction costs paid ~ 27(c)i) = (3,687) (2,989) - - (6,676)
RZF-——FZA=1-H At 31 March 2011 125,414 - au.2n 5,329 171,254 343,268

+ ¥y X R £ X 4 ¥
I
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27 BEMGEW(Z)

27 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(c) R (c) Share capital
g% —z—z4
2011 2010
BAEE Eo¢:0) & A Eog
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
T B Fx FH& Tt
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
EERA Authorised:
FREEI T B Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERITREERE : Issued and fully paid:
REA—H At 1 April 125,687 125,687 125,587 125,587
BRI AR 88T Shares issued under share option
/B9 (T 5E31)) scheme (note (i) 505 505 100 100
5] B 1 (B 5 i) Shares repurchased (note (ii)) (778) (778) - -
W=A=+—H At 31 March 125,414 125,414 125,687 125,687
5T - notes:

(i) RIFBAERT BT

RER - BRIEFBEARBERARA LA
fi% & $£505,0000% (=Z—=4 : 100,000
A%) - (B3 /A3,176,0000( —FE—Z 4 :
233,0007T) + HA505,0000( = —F
£ 1 100,0007T) iR ABRASER - M #R T &Y
2,671,00070( = ZF —Z 4 : 133,0007T)
AlEE AR B8R » 610,0007T( =& —
T4F 1 96,0007T ) B ARIE B 3 1(0)i)FT %)
HIBUR BB RNEEE ARG HERR

1 12 KPEEBERATE

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

@)

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
505,000 (2010: 100,000) ordinary shares in the Company at
a consideration of $3,176,000 (2010: $233,000), of which
$505,000 (2010: $100,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of $2,671,000 (2010: $133,000) was credited to
the share premium account. $610,000 (2010: $96,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with policy set out in note 1(o)(ii).
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27 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
notes: (continued)

(i) Purchase of own shares

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HLEFE" During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company repurchased
RAREBMRABEAFRAHIAT its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:
IE1 5 AR 47 SR SRS
EiEAH 8B FifaE EaE BIEE
Number of Highest Lowest
shares Aggregate price paid price paid
Date of repurchase repurchased price paid per share per share
Fr T T
$'000 $ $
“Z-ZFRAKAE 6 May 2010 100,000 794 7.96 7.91
—ZZ-TERALH 7 May 2010 41,000 319 7.85 7.75
—Z-TFRA+=A 12 May 2010 50,000 387 7.75 7.75
ZT-TFRATLA 17 May 2010 20,000 152 7.60 7.60
“T-TFRAZTH 20 May 2010 9,000 66 7.40 7.30
“Z-TF¥AA=-1+HA 25 May 2010 40,000 293 7.45 7.20
“T-TFA\RZfMA 24 August 2010 20,000 167 8.34 8.34
“T-ZF\R=+—H 31 August 2010 60,000 490 8.18 8.16
-z 2¢+—H75 1 December 2010 35,500 380 10.74 10.62
2T 2 December 2010 52,000 567 10.92 10.82
2T 3 December 2010 20,000 217 10.92 10.82
2T H-ME 16 December 2010 50,000 539 10.80 10.74
ZT-TF+ZA=1H 20 December 2010 24,000 255 10.72 10.62
ZT-TFFZAZ1-H 21 December 2010 38,500 416 10.80 10.76
ZT-TFFZAZFNB 29 December 2010 5,000 53 10.60 10.60
—Z—%-fA+—H 11 February 2011 40,000 426 10.68 10.62
—T——FZAt//\H 18 February 2011 24,000 263 10.96 10.94
B S B = 21 February 2011 15,500 170 10.98 10.82
“Z——4-A-1+=H 23 February 2011 8,000 88 10.98 10.98
—“Z——#-A-1/MA 24 February 2011 84,000 924 11.02 10.98
—E——&-fF-+7A 25 February 2011 41,000 449 10.96 10.94
Fk ] Total 777,500 7,415

EIERMNERETHE  MARAZEET
B AN 78 2 48 BB 25 7% 5 B R B i) e

fa -

sh BB TSI s (B R R 5K

K45 Rl A6,637,0007T %239,0007T * WE
EARARRRAEENREERIR -

BHE—

/N

s X ¥ X K

—FE=-A=+—HBLFE"

7Iﬁﬁﬁ,JﬂTZﬁ%H§ifﬁ °

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of these shares. The premium and transaction costs paid
on the repurchase of the shares of $6,637,000 and $39,000
respectively were charged to the Company’s and the Group’s
reserves.

The Company did not purchase any of its own shares during
the year ended 31 March 2010.

4 x 4 ¥
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(BR3EZ AT - TAHLBEIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27 BEMGER(Z) 27 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(c) A (42) (c) Share capital (continued)
MisE (& notes: (continued)
(i) PA ¥ 25 B 4 SRR 18 K JE M A 181 AR 1T (2 Y (iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of
BRI G R the reporting period
®FH 1TEEARE TEE —E——F —E-BF
Exercise Exercise
Date granted period price 2011 2010
JT #H £
$ Number Number
—ETNEFMANAE —E-ZEFENARAE-_E—+FNANA
6 April 2009 5 April 2010 to 4 April 2017 6.30 800,000 800,000
—EZNEFEMANA —ZE-ZENA-RE-_E—RFE=-A=+—H
8 April 2009 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2016 6.26 3,358,000 4,220,000
—EZhFRANAH “ZE-ZENA-RAE-_E—R"E=-A=1+—H
4 May 2009 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2016 6.29 95,000 100,000
—ETNFLATH “ZT-ZFLA-HEZZE—R"FAA=1+H
10 July 2009 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2016 7.69 90,000 200,000
—ZT-ZF=H—H —E——fF—-fF-HE-Z-AFT_A=1+—H
1 March 2010 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2016 8.08 400,000 400,000

ZZ-TFFT-A++R —E——F+-A++tBRET-\Ft+—A+~A

17 December 2010 17 December 2011 to 16 November 2018 10.96 50,000 -

—Z——FZR+<H —E-——F-A+AAE-ET—+F-A+HA

16 February 2011 16 February 2012 to 15 February 2017 10.90 100,000 -
4,893,000 5,720,000

BHERERTERBEARTRBEIRAAD Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary

AL AROER - ARG LERENE share in the Company. Further details of these options are set

—ERER WKW T24 - out in note 24 to the financial statements.

RPEEEBRAF
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27 BEMER(Z)
(d) BEEB AR
() BR17%E

BHaEENEREXARFHA
AIERMAFE1S0RFEISTEMNE
E-NAN—F(RAERITEE -

(ii) PEX Gt

R e R R B R R M T
BERFEENFAEEE - A2
AURIEMI 1 ()FT M 0 & 5 IR F R 32
FE 34 G o

(iii) N &g

RE-NNANEN—REMA KK
BRTER AR EKR SRR FEH B
NA) e RRFFEAME QB BER
REEFEBBRARAEHTRND
EEMNHEDIATRRNHAR

ARARNHABRBKEBERE- NN
—HRAPERIFHRE - REAR
ZE—NN—F(REVER) » AR A
HBA B ER AT AR

AT ETHIERT - AAA T8
PEON-E S E8% S
HiE -

(a) PN RRIR A SO A S 2
MBE X

(o) REEMAEREERAMPINHE
BEEADEITRARRNEE
AREVARAN o

(iv) EX e

BB R IEREM 1 (0)()FTETA
in RERE RS ETER -
RETARREEBRENERSL
EEFARITEBENAR(EE -

27 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of PRC operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 1(s).

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the
Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company has been
credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

(iv) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(o)(ii).
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27 BEMGEM(Z)
(d) FEBEHMEMRR(E)

(v) FTHFIEZEYEE L
THRMBEYNEGHERERNEF
EEFAMMESB AR EMERETT
BEFEANED -

(i) BRI 7 REEE
R_E——F=ZA=+—8 " a/#t
DEFARNGERRENFEERR
£212,525,00000( — & — & F:
212,746,0007T) » EER RS B4
RiEEZ DR AR EF32.01L
(ZZ2—ZF: KBRS EF28.01L)
MEFRIAREI B BB 12.00(=
T—FF : F) A 155,182,0007C
(ZZ—ZT 4 :35,192,0007T) ° &
LR SR TRE AR AERS
BfE-

(e) BARER
AEEEREEANTEENSHERR
BREMEEN - RMEHEREBIZE
Bk FE AERTE BN RRENSERAN
BSRE - #EAKRFEREDR -

R-_E——F=ZA=+—H K£H
48 1 FEA1,926,0000( —ZF — T4
45,265,0007T ) ° Il RZZFE——4F
ZA=+—8 BELERRAAEER
fERE R A MBEERLLE)F9.0% (=
T—2F :11.0%) c RE——F=H
=+t—8  AEENLEBERE  TH
G RIRE &4 H£253,328,0007T( =
T —F4F 1 209,833,0007T) °

AEEES LT B MEEELE AR
B LA SRR KA H IR
=0 AR [ 3 B A B AN AR Y B B AN AR
& 2 ARG P - 3 e R A AR iR
MREARRBIELAE -

1 16 KPSEEBERAT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

27 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
change arising on the revaluation of property held for
own use upon transfer to investment property.

(vi) Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $212,525,000 (2010: $212,746,000). After
the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed
a final dividend of 32.0 cents (2010: final dividend of
28.0 cents) per share and a special final dividend of
12.0 cents (2010: nil) amounting to $55,182,000 (2010:
$35,192,000). These dividends have not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2011, the Group has total borrowings amounting
to $41,926,000 (2010: $45,265,000). The gearing ratio,
representing the ratio of total borrowings to the total share
capital and reserves of the Group was 9.0% at 31 March
2011 (2010: 11.0%). The Group had structured note, time
deposits and cash balances as at 31 March 2011 amounting
to $253,328,000 (2010: $209,833,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

x X ¥y X K+

),



-

28 MBEBEERAARKRE 28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value

(a) IR ERE N AREE (a) Financial risk management and fair value
AEESEEEEBRERLREE - Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
MBES  MEMEERER - AEEE risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
EURBOAERUARAERELRR The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
FTE% AR B B 75 B B B 22 IBOSR AN 1E % iR management policies and practices used by the Group to
- HAAT e manage these risks are described below.

() =ZEmER (i) Credit risk

7 35 B £ L 8 5 OO
HORLE A B © $R1T A AR
RRTHRE - BREDHTEE
) BOIRSE - 3 BT BB E LA
RERNOEE -

LB ER R E A UM S - AR
SEAERENBE  BRAKHE
A RFEERENTPREHER
R - TEXPENEE  JER
FEREBRAR  REBSHPER
i EERRIYEBREMNERE
B o

AEENEBERE - EHFRM
REEHR—REFREREARTH
TR o

AEEAZOEERR LRSY
BRARTEREREENRE
B o BRPM FE30RT B A 2 B 3h 2R 0 Y
BRAMRITHEREERHMKE
R ARRBRB—UBIYIE=ZTR
an B T A I P A8 A B9 B KT [ 3R
TTHEAIRITIF R (2 BT RE20) Hb -
7R 5 (8 3 M R AT ) E b HE AR BUE
REBEAZEERR -

BREANEEATHEEWRERTFME M
JEUWGRATEEMEERKAE—F
TEEWERNRTEIINAMFEI -

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank.
Management has a credit policy in place and the expenses
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that catering services are
provided to customers with an appropriate credit history.
Sales to retail customers are made in cash, Octopus or via
major credit cards. At the end of the reporting period,
there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group’s structured note, time deposits and cash
balances are normally placed with financial institutions
of high credit quality.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. Except for the financial guarantee
given by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries as disclosed in note 30
and the pledge of bank deposits to a bank to secure
a loan borrowed by an independent third party food
processing contractor (see note 20), the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 19.
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28 MERBEERAOARMBEE)
(a) HBREBERER AL BEE)

(i) TEEZE R
AEBANERCEEREATR
GNBRSERIIF BERSAR
MR EMEGERAENTER
ReFmRK MREFBBABRELTE
RIEELER  BEHESKARBES
TRt e AEENRREETHE
BRBESEIR ULRREFAME
REZONRTE  BUBRRERT A
MIRERHEE IR ETZSHMHEEI
BRANEZEERE  UhEE
HAREBHNRBESTK -

NN

TRFJAREERARRIEITE
ETES BB ERREHEREN
HERAEZIMFIE - ZFERAE
BOEANRASRE(BRAKE
MK MEFE - mRREE
SR H)E B ARG E AR B0 K
AEEMAR R ARE N BEIM
5I%R -

SR R EREE G - RITA 2
BBEBHTHNERERNS - BH
DMHIRIEANHEERBERNR
Tt XA RAIEEERATTE
AW B B E RN SR S
M B B PTERRRE o

1 18 KPEEBERAAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s Board of Directors when
the borrowings exceed certain pre-determined levels of
authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirement and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.

For term loans subject to repayment on demand clauses
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the contractual
repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the
timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
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28 MBRBEERAAMRE(E)
(a) ¥BEABRERLAAEEGE)

(i) mBELERE (&)

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

A%H
The Group
2--F
201
HES
bighikA RER -EJE RENML
BESE  REEE e -Fh  ERER  BEFR BENULE
Total More than  More than
contractual  Repayment 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted on Within -~ lessthan ~ lessthan  More than
amount  cash flow demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T T
§000 §000 §/000 §/000 §000 §000 §/000
WERERERERNESES Term loans subject to repayment on
HETREREE demand clauses: scheduled repayments 5,936 6,133 - 6,133 - - -
AfpFIEH Other bank loans 35,990 39,206 - 5803 5,740 2477 7,186
EliEsRs Rental deposits received 1,35 1,35 - 873 479 - -
R ER Creditors and accrued expenses T4 AN747 - - - -
fiEeRIA Derivative financil instruments 740 1,634 - 53 45 640 13
261,965 266,272 - 231,292 6,664 21,117 7199
REERAEERERNERY Adjustment to disclose cash flows
BRERSRNRERBEAFE on term loans based on lender right
to demand repayment (197) 5,936 (6,133) - - -
266,075 5936 225,159 6,664 1117 7,199

< X ¥ X K 4+ X X ¥
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28 MBRBEERAARE(E)
(a) ¥BEABRERLAAEEGE)

(i) mBELER (&)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

558
The Group
ZB-ZE(E))
2010 (restated)
BEES
RRE BER -ERE WENL
FESE  REEE i - BmER BEER ZENE
Total More than  More than
contractual  Repayment 1year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted on Within -~ lessthan ~ lessthan  More than
amount  cash flow demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
Tn Tn i Tr Tn n i
§'000 §000 §/000 §000 §000 §000 §000
WERERERERNESES Term loans subject to repayment on
HETRERER demand clauses: scheduled repayments 5,686 6,229 - 365 5,864 - -
AfpFAEH Other bank loans 39579 43,490 - 4,498 5,781 21502 11,709
EliEsie Rental deposits received 1614 1614 - 488 m 349 -
B ETER Creditors and accrued expenses 88 2088 - W - - -
fTEeBIE Derivative financial instruments 116 1861 - 249 543 1,004 65
269,877 276,076 - 228,482 12,965 22,855 1,774
REERAEERERNERY Adjustment to disclose cash flows
ARERSTNRERBEAFE on ter loans based on lender’s right
to demand repayment (543) 5,686 (365) (5,864) - -
275533 5,686 28117 7,101 22,855 1,774

1 ZO ABRERBERRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28 MBRBEERAAME(E)
(a) ¥BEABRERLAAEEGE)

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i) mBELER (&)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

KAH
The Company
—E——F
2011
HESES
TRAE
RESE B —FR
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
¥ T 5
$'000 $'000 $'000
FETBR KA FERT & A Creditors and accrued expenses 1,736 1,736 1,736
FEHB A RIFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,875 27,875 27,875
29,611 29,611 29,611
RAT]
The Company
—ZT-TF
2010
iTHIR
R\
REeE B AR —FR
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
Tt Tt Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000
FERTRRRFIIEST & F Creditors and accrued expenses 1,339 1,339 1,339
JEAST B B8 A B3R IA Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,875 27,875 27,875
29,214 29,214 29,214

> ¥ X
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(

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28 MERBEERRAORMEE)
(a) BBEBREER AL EBEE)

(i) F| 3 &
AEBOMNERREBRAGHEME
ZERBTER - MERITERZ
EMHBF RS -

BIRITERMS - EEERFERAER
FIE K IR EBA S B E A&
REE M REF AT RIBHELHNER
MERE RN _TE——F=ZA=+—
H  AEERITERNEERFEA
31%(ZE—FF :29%) °

NEBMDET S ABE BRI RS
HEd  UWEEFAAEBEED
BRT ZBCEEMETEFZEF
ZEBEES R-_E——EF=A=
+—H  AEEONFXEHHEO8
AHEAMEEA23,307,00000( - =
— 24 1 24,133,0007T) © AIEEE
BETFRITEROFE - DUREF =
KB E -

ELEHG LR RKRAFFRNE -
HABER(2HMFE22) W38 A
—5 - HEEEBHAENT2.63%FE
274% - RZE——F=H=+—
B AEEMZEHEONARE
B %58 A740,0000( — B —FF :
116,0007T) - B S BERRABIT
EemT A WEFAIENERZ
Ha sk (fizE21) o

R-ZBE——F=ZA=+—H " &t
BREMEIZM, D S0EER (R
RAAHMAREEARERTE) A
SEAORRBE RN E GBI R
#789,0007T( = T — T % : 86,000
TT) °

1 22 KPEEBERAAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
structured note and bank loans. All bank loans bear
interest at market rates.

For the bank loans, when appropriate and at times of
interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps
may be used to assist in the Group’s management of
interest rate exposure. The effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2011 is 3.1% (2010:
2.9%).

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate mix
of fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with
the Group’s policy. At 31 March 2011, the Group had
interest rate swaps with a notional contract amount of
$23,307,000 (2010: $24,133,000) to fix the interest rate
of certain bank borrowings so as to reduce the impact of
interest rate fluctuation.

The swaps mature over the next 5.5 years, matching the
maturity of the related loans (see note 22) and have fixed
swap rates ranging from 2.63% to 2.74%. The net fair
value of swaps entered into by the Group at 31 March
2011 was $740,000 (2010: $116,000). These amounts
are recognised as derivative financial instruments and are
included within “Trade and other payables” (note 21).

At 31 March 2011, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group's profit after tax by approximately $89,000
(2010: $86,000).
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28 IEBEERAAMEE (£
(@) BIEEBRERR AL EE(E)
(iii) FEE 2 ()

AEHREDIRA - REF R E
PEREHERTELEE L H
ERREHRAERASEMFTENS
MTHE ERAEERBEHRER
BAEAABENXRAR  A5E
HIBR R 1R B & 3R MY BB &) o
AR ERRERERFTHNF
PMEIMTETEAMEENRER
ENXREBRBEEMNS  AEENK
BMEENAZINZEITIABEN
REEH N B HIWANFE(
FEELGT OMEREAEA T —
TERRMEELETT -

(iv) B @ e

AEEMEENIIERRTIERE
AHEBEARREREXBHINEES
AN E BB AB IR E AN
RITFER - SIBEERARNER X
ERETLARE - AR B IREH
HKEBER AEBSESBRIR
REEXEHINEG - UREREFER
SREBE I AR R AKE o

TR ARG B WS HIAE R A
MEASELEXBNIEEE I
SN ERHENDHERAEELBE
PREEMINERBREEE - 3o M
5 ERBERNRERERFEDN
REERGEREEIITR - R
ErBERAREENSIRERHRE
BIMERERBENM B BRRAELEN
EH o

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expenses or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through structured note and cash at bank that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States Dollars and Renminbi. The Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short term imbalances.

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to foreign currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
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28 MERBRERRARMBEEE) 28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) IRABERE AR EBEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iv) B2 (4B) (iv) Currency risk (continued)
AW
IR BREEE
(LLBETIR)
The Group

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

S —z-T5
2011 2010

Ep AR ET AREE

United United

States States
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
5 5 Fr F5
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Hih & mEE Other financial asset 2,334 = 2,341 -
RITERFES Bank deposits and cash 24,611 44,024 63,210 -
26,945 44,024 65,551 -
TR AN B A BR B & s A R AR The following table indicates the change in the Group's
Bm M AR E RS EKNER profit after tax and retained profits that would arise if
WIEENRERERFEEE - R foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
BB EMAREEERTE @ exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
B IR L - TEFE - AR at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
Eo BB TES - AEEEMET constant. In this respect, as United States Dollar is pegged
HATHEZ g HREMEBERE to Hong Kong Dollar, the Group does not expect any
& o significant movements in the United States Dollar/Hong

Kong Dollar exchange rate.

—E——F
2011

BB s A
RARE R F
ExLH g ()
(T &) Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after
in foreign tax and
exchange rates retained profits
Aot T
% $'000
AR Renminbi 5.0 2,201
(5.0) (2,201)

RPEREBRAF
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28 MBRRERRAAMBEEE) 28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)

(a) IR ERE N AREBEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
v) ~ArEE (v) Fair values

(1) BARBEIRNESHTA

(1) Financial instruments carried at fair value

RIBCEEM B HRE LA DET
5t (S TE - T IREN
—EARBEEBR TREIR
AREEFENSHITAERS
HERFNETER  HF8R
TRTANAABESREHE
ARBEFENSERERNNR
BEANBAZEMETERD
B ZREMMERWLT

- BEBR(&SER) AR
EMITAERBEMSHNRE
(REHRB)FAERAEE

- BER RELUERTIAHE
RIS RE - R
BEERBAZE R BZAM
BEURBENMSEEAR
HEERMEEARER &

- FoEBAREER) - KA

BENmMBBEBEAANGE
Ritst8AnEE -

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments;

— Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data; and

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input
is not based on observable market data.

rEE
The Group
—E——fF
2011
F—ER E_EBR E=BR FER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T T Fr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
=R Liabilities
PTESHMIA Derivative financial
instruments - 740 - 740

< X ¥y XR A X 4 ¥
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28 MBRRERRAARMEEE) 28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) IRABERE AR EBEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
v) A IEEE) (v) Fair values (continued)

() BAREEYERNERTIAE

(1) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

REE
The Group
—E-TF
2010
E—ER FER E=ER k]
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F Fr T T
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
=R Liabilities
TESMIA Derivative financial
instruments - 116 - 116

REAN - @RTAVEESE—E
B B_ERNB=ERzMEL
RAEAEAER -

2) FRAABEIIENEHTAN
NR{EE

BTl TAIN  AEELEAK
NCIEIIRNCE: 3 ]DRVNE D
MTANEEEE BERX-F
——FR-_E-TF=A=1+—

@)

During the year there were no significant transfers
between financial instruments in Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 March 2011 and 2010 except as

AN AREBEDRITK : follows:
TEH
The Group
—E——fF —ET—TF
2011 2010
RE<HE AREE RESR A=A =]
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
Fi F5 Fi Fi
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
&E Asset
LHEESHRKARRT E M EM  Other financial asset
EREE at amortised cost 2,334 2,296 2,341 2,279

RIFEEEERAF
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28 MBEEBRERRAR ﬁ@(mﬁ%)

(a)

FHRBREENMN AR BEE)

) 2 EE(E)
JEUT K FE AT B B A R IR B ER
- B REBEEZEBNRE/NE
B Al WEEQAEBEEET
K °

(i) 27 1EER G
) B HN ARG ENHEM SR EE
’Aﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁfﬁiméﬁﬂﬁﬂ
RE AR RRAESRTA
B & B T35 N ST THTIR o

(2 TTEL®IA
T'J?%ﬁﬁﬁé#’]ﬁ’]“ﬁﬁﬁm?
RIS H R IRE BRI RE
MEMETE e

(3) ANEERAABEMFER
AEBEREHA-_T——F=A=
T—BAEFBRITRAEHRSHHNE
HAR - ZINEAMEENEEE
ERFR/ITHE - FTAF M

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)

(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) Fair values (continued)
Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable/repayable on demand. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their fair
values.

(vi) Estimation of fair value

(1

(3)

Other financial asset at amortised cost

The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of interest rate swap is determined by
discounting the future cash flows of the contracts at
the current market interest rates.

Interest rate used for determining fair value

The Group uses the interest rate curve of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"”) as of 31 March
2011 plus an adequate constant credit spread to
discount financial instruments. The interest rates used

™ are as follows:
AEE
The Group
—EB——5F —T—FF
2011 2010
WEHEK AT ENEMESFIEE  Other financial asset at amortised cost 1.81% 1.78%
PTESHMITA Derivative financial instruments 0.34% — 1.94%  0.69% —2.33%

< X ¥y XR A X 4 ¥
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28 MBEAREERAARREE)

(b) &R T AR

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(b) Categories of financial instruments

REM ¥ NN
The Group The Company
—E-——F ZE-TF —ZT——F ZZT-ZTF
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fr T Fr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ERMEE Financial assets
B R Loans and receivables
— FEUERFR ~ IR MERR — Debtors, deposits
and prepayments 90,030 80,009 225 207
— PR B A R FIB — Amounts due
from subsidiaries - - 348,035 363,973
— DA SRR AR Y — Other financial asset
EtherEE at amortised cost 2,334 2,341 — -
—RITERFRS — Bank deposits and cash 253,710 210,042 222 205
346,074 292,392 348,482 364,385
AEE b /NG|
The Group The Company
—E——F ZE-TF —Z——F ZT-IZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
SEoE T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
= N=F Financial liabilities
AR R EER ABRDN Financial instruments
SRITA at fair value through
profit or loss 740 116 - -
B SHRK AR Amortised cost
—BlESRS - Rental deposits
received 1,352 1,614 - -
—ERBRRFERER — Creditors and
accrued expenses 217,947 222,882 1,736 1,339
— ERIB B A R FIB — Amounts due
to subsidiaries - - 27,875 27,875
—RITER - Bank loans 41,926 45,265 - -
261,225 269,761 29,611 29,214
261,965 269,877 29,611 29,214

1 28 ABRERBERRAF
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(@) RZE——FE=A=+—BRENTX
REF B HR NI B EFBHE A ALEDN

29
(a)

Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2011 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

T
rEH

The Group
—E——F —T—TF
2011 2010
FE Tt
$'000 $'000
BEET4 Contracted for 8,563 968
ERERRTLN Authorised but not contracted for 32,834 31,814
41,397 32,782

RZE——F=A=+—HBRENHE
AEWE B TE — % K/ #023,662,0007T( =
T —F4F 1 29,944,0007T ) U FIAE - 2
ABTHRREGMNIHLHRRERE - %
BEME KR REARNEE MR
§ °

o RZE——F=A=+—8"
AEERKEREENEGHNEBRAKRE
NMXKRETEHRRANIRBEEFHE
o, 7# ¥ 58,617,0000( — & — T 4F ¢
10,408,0007T) ©

Included in capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
2011 is an amount of $23,662,000 (2010: $29,944,000) for
the future development of the central food processing plant
to facilitate the Group’s long term business growth.

In addition, the Group had outstanding other commitments
of $8,617,000 at 31 March 2011 (2010: $10,408,000) in
respect of the contracting fee for operation of a fast food
restaurant not provided for in the financial statements.

At 31 March 2011, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
are payable as follows:

rEH

The Group
—E——fF —E-TF
2011 2010
T T
$'000 $'000
—&ER Within 1 year 218,348 199,830
—FRERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 262,696 218,426
hF#E After 5 years 16,113 21,539
497,157 439,795

K
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29 &k (&)
by RZE—F=A=+—"H ' BEITA

30

31

RPEREBRAF
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BENKEHERERRENHKEDE
MENREEBIT : (&)

AEBENGEHERAIDME - B
ME—RVNTAEE—FENF LEB
EREEDHAKESR ERMEK
FEYAEFAT HENKBERESER
# URMTISEHE Sk BEHERKRE
EFHIO%E20% (T —ZTF : 9%%
20%)EREATENEERET B
TEFEELBMERRA -

REEEHHEBLLOHEDE - N _T—
—FZA=+—H  BERTAIBRKHD
A REHERZATRRMRES A
FXE 488 A324,000C( —E T
2,400,0007T) °

RAAR

RZE-——F=A=+—H ARAEA
HETE2EMNBARRSNRBERK
HARITRBEEMRRITIELER -

RIREBRERE - EERBREMEBE
REFARBWREMNATEETK - B
WEBLRE - AR AIBIEZIERAES
EONSRKEBAMENBAREIRIA
# A E%884,006,000 (=T —FT4:
79,608,0007T) * EHZERAEH
HREE -

A T 3 9 5 AR R A (R E M
A REREARBESEET fmE
g MERARHEE -

EXMBAER
BABBRREMEIFREHRS R
e - REEETT T THIEARN
%5

29 Commitments (continued)
(b) At 31 March 2011, the total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
are payable as follows: (continued)

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one
to nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased
to reflect market rentals. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2010: 9% to 20%) of
the turnover over the base rents and are excluded from the
information disclosed above.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2011
are $324,000 (2010: $2,400,000).

30 Contingent Liabilities

31

At 31 March 2011, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn
down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantee,
being $84,006,000 (2010: $79,608,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured and there is no transaction price.

Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

x by X ¥ 4
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31
(a)

32

33

34

EXRBAEXSH(E)

EM SE7FT R EE - RESRE IR A B A0 B
ERENARBESZTHHIA - 4%
BIEAEI B TR IR (2BIEES D)) °

RER - ARE—KWEB AR MIFRER
BRERAR(FHEDHAA-EWE-
FHAERGLEREREREREE
wHEA - N BREBGEEATENE
E- FREANES B A AE1,440,000
TT(—Z—=4 : 1,437,0007T) °

REARN ARF—RWEAGMATEE
¥ARAR(TAEDBAA—BEYE-
AENGKRESHRBARERB LA
NEBMBAL ZRABTERERG
EEMEL - FAFEENHEHESER
£721,0000( —F —F 4 : 1,136,000
JL) °

BEMREREFARER
EENMEMAEREER D RR R
BIREARL S+ BRI IEHIINMEE10 -

HREF
HRERT(EERB)ESR  HaT
HEBFOELHAE  UNARFEN
SR

2 FIER F s st

BIEE14 « 24F028% 5B BN i E R A
ERTERERSRMTAAARBENR
BHEREERNER o HthEZREET
HETETAERNT ¢

[E] € & B R B

RER B B E ¥R S B4 RS =B A B AN
SNREVER - AR EEERT BT
MRERSR - MROBEFMESETR
FafitEEEEMNRREEEE F&E
MIENNEE RS EHME R T LR
TEHF SR Y 6 m M AJ AR [ BORR A 5 = E
ER] - HERRFE G M HEE

31
(a)

=

32

33

34

Material Related Party Transactions (continued)
Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid
to the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff cost” (see note 5(b)).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a property
from New Champion International Limited (“New Champion”).
New Champion is a company wholly beneficially owned by Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and his family members. In addition, Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of New Champion. Rental
expenses incurred during the year amounted to $1,440,000
(2010: $1,437,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Front Land Properties Limited (“Front Land").
The ultimate beneficial owners of Front Land are Mr Lo Hoi
Chun, who is a cousin of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, and his
associate. Rental expenses incurred during the year amounted
to $721,000 (2010: $1,136,000).

Non-adjusting Event after the Reporting Period
After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend and a special final dividend. Further details
are disclosed in note 10.

Comparative Figures

As a result of the application of Hong Kong Interpretation 5,
certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to the current year’s presentation.

Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Notes 14, 24 and 28 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment, fair
value of share options granted and financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of fixed assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to assess whether there
is any indication that a fixed asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the fixed
asset is estimated. Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amounts, which would affect profit or loss in future years.

;¥ X ¥ 4 X 4 ¥
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34 EstHERFN{EET(2)
(b) #TE

34 Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)
(b) Depreciation

BEE&E(T BRI XERME) =X
HRRRERAIRBRAENE - XK

SEMEHNEENTATAIREHR - A
BERLATAREHENTEERR
B I HPRAAKRERESERESR
ENERETE - MREBEZEENTED
ERFBERRAEAR - e HBERKMHE
MITEER -

(0 REWMEMMLE

IEANBEE13(b) At - I E MR IRIRIE
VEXBEMITAETOMEE  LEE
FAESWAFRANYET S EERSE
BemAR A EBETIR -

REEAREER  AEMERRES
ETHAMGBETRET  EFEEE

8 7 3 2 N B ARRIA R M 18 35 ¥ SR 3R B
MISHEENR LA RETSEEE - BK
REERSR  ERECIFEL T HET
REZGEETDERRTSENR

BAMNEH M HEHEA

AEBEABNEENEHEPENEA -
I 1E B8 FE AR R AR TR B A I R 1 L Kl o
REEXRGEET  EZX5HME
HRARIAEARET - WMRAAZRD
MRERNREYCEELRE  ZRFEEH
SHELZORTENFENTIRRBRENK

B/ 488
2

~

EXHRBEENER T RETAEIRA
B - BURREIEE Y A B IR E
BERRERBUEN B - HIAEE
MERSABERNE BAFETR -

=

Fixed assets (other than cutlery and utensils) are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are material changes from
previous estimates.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 13(b), the investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional surveyors after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.

Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
taxes. Judgement is required in determining the provision
for such taxes. There are transactions during the ordinary
course of business, for which calculation of the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the
management’s expectation of future taxable profit that will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

RREFEBERDE
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34
(e)

35

EatHERFNEE (=)

RHEIRR T &

EH sE26(a)ff Bt - REBRER
BCRBEEHEIDOREFELRARE %
e AEBERRIOINEBEENGE
BRHELRE  URMETRR UK
HiRR TS & IR LT - AERBHTA
REIRGS & EHPIIR A ZFRR A 8L
RBBTRARKNER - IMRZEHLIR
TR MR D - HEFERRFEN
i M S B 1R o

EEXA L

IEANFEE26(b) PRt - 755 B 3L 18 5 #%
1A 18 A TH & 175 5 e T 5 T EE AR O R A2
REMGFHEL TEERALEE - MABRE
EReXIITARRZZE - BAst

FIREBERELMNKA - INRZERLR
EAEMEE D - BEFERRFEN
i F S 1R o

CHRGERKREEE_ZS—%=A
=+—HLEFEEEROELT - FER
MBRETEERpNEE
HEAPBRERTIER  BEFGHQ
SO EMEERE-_ZE—F=/A=+
—BIFEHRER  TNEBERGTE
HERRANZHEETNRER —HITE
Al o ELL B BIE N Y P REE A EE
HrIEE ¢

34 Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)
(e) Provision for long service payments

35

As explained in note 26(a), the Group makes provision for
long service payments in accordance with the requirement
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has
based the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and
adopted certain assumptions in assessing the provision for
long service payments. It is possible that these assumptions
adopted by the Group in assessing the provision for long
service payments may not be indicative of the future situation.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit
or loss in future years.

Provision for reinstatement costs

As explained in note 26(b), the Group makes provision
for reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the
expected costs to be incurred upon expiry of the respective
rental agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and might
differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect profit or loss in future years.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and
Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective for the
Year Ended 31 March 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
interpretations and one new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2011 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group:

;¥ X ¥ 4 X 4 ¥
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35 EFMHBERNKREBE_S——FZH 35 Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and

E+—HILFEEENBHERT » HEQ Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective for the
MRERERNEE(2) Year Ended 31 March 2011 (continued)

EUTAE

H 2 EBREY

B HEEXR

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BB GTERIDE 245 18 7T— B85 #2565 | —Z——%—H—H
Revised HKAS 24, Related party disclosures 1 January 2011
(BEEBHREERDFEIR—T LRI A —T—=%—H—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2013
(BB BHREEIDHZE(ZZ—FF) —ET-EFLA—H

H_E——F—H—H
Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) 1 July 2010

or 1 January 2011

(CEBGFERDE125SET— P8 —T——-%—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes 1 January 2012
REEFET A E ST MBRRERIE The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
A ¥ta e R BRI M TEET 2 & - BB Al what the impact of these amendments and interpretations,
RBlE - AEERERMNEEEFTNRE and new standard is expected to be in the period of initial
R EAETERECENEENKL S application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
KB BEARR - is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results

of operations and financial position.

RPEREBRAF
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TEMNEBAA

Principal Subsidiaries

(AABEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DAEER

EMARL,/
RURLE Y
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

BRT/
BRERHE

Particulars of issued/

LSNE ) g5
ki zaatt

Percentage of shares

Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activity
H# B
directly indirectly
AEERARATF BE 2REREET - 100%  WERE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
Cision Development Limited BA AREREEIT - 100% EEE
Cision Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a restaurant
ARERINBRBRDA &% 10,000 B REE1 T - 100% REER
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of $1 each Investment holding
Development Limited
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* RBARAREE/TE 579437 EREE  100% - REBR
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British 0.01%T Investment holding
Virgin Islands/ 579,437 shares of
Hong Kong US$0.01 each
Fairwood Consolidated KEERRES /B8 REBIET 100% - REZK
Investments Limited* The British 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
Fairwood Consolidated Virgin Islands/
Investments Limited* Hong Kong
ARERE(ER)BRDA A R EHRAEET - 100% REREBER
Fairwood Fast Food Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Restaurant licences holding
(Management) Limited
AREREERAA] BB 100REAREREEI0TR - 100% @ EEEHREE
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong 579,437 ER RIEET Operation of a chain of
R BREE10T fast food restaurants
100 ordinary shares
of $10 each and
579,437 non-voting
deferred shares of
$10 each
Fairwood Trademark B.VI. Limited*  ER@BRES /EH \RABIET - 100%  BHEHE
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* The British 1 share of US$1 Trademark holding
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

+ ¥ X ¥k 4 X X ¥
.
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FEMBAT

Principal Subsidiaries
(AEEEFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DRER

BRI/
RURCE L
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

BRT/
BRERHE

Particulars of issued/

LSNE ) i§5;
ki zaatt

Percentage of shares

IERHK

Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activity
EE  BE
directly indirectly
SERRERAA & R EHREET - 100% @ EEREE
Finemax Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a fast
food restaurant
MERRARRA BB PREREET - 100%  MERE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
VEERBRAR BE 2REREET - 100% WERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
RLRERBRAA A AR EHREET - 100%  MERE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
REERBRAA ik IREHRAEET - 100%  MERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BRREERERAA & R EHREET - 100% HERE
Professional Institutional Catering Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a restaurant
RERRERAT & R EHREE T - 100%  MERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ERERERAT BB PREREET - 100%  MERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
RYIKREREBRA A R 3,100,000 T - 100% EEEHREE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Limited* The PRC US$3,100,000 Operation of a chain of fast
food restaurants
BAERBRAA A AR EREET - 100%  MERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
RHERFRRA ik IREHRAEET - 100%  MERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
REZRERAA & R EHREET - 100% WERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment

RPEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SR/

AEER RUREE
Place of

incorporation/

establishment and

B&fT KA
EMERFHE kiizER  TEXRE

Particulars of issued/  Percentage of shares

Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company Principal activity
E# B
directly indirectly
FEERBRAA 3 AREHREETT - 100%  MERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BERRERA &iE R EHRAEET - 100%  MERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ERERARARA & R EHRAEET - 100%  MERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment

(" A ERRNIERESH AN EEMEZ)

(@ RZE——F=A=+—H " kHES
BT Al E ST B i AT B A R B S R
EHRh AR ARENBEEESER
BBEFENI% (ZE—ZF 8% K
10%(ZE—FF 1 6%) °

(o) BBARMEEFEEITEERA

S G S D
B

(* Companies not audited by KPMG)
(@) At 31 March 2011, the financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total turnover and total net assets

constituting approximately 9% (2010: 8%) and 10% (2010: 6%)
respectively of the related consolidated totals.

(b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.

+ X X ¥
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AREERFHHRE
Five-Year Group Financial Summary

(B FIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE=A=t+-ALHFE
Year ended 31 March

—E--f ZF-TF C—RRNF —TEN\F TR
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Tr Tr T T Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HiE Results:
B Turnover 1,665,881 1,562,348 1,465,503 1,433,476 1,204,863
R Profit from operations 147,249 111,718 94,812 121,169 95,818
B & AR Finance costs (2,100) (1,332) (199) (1,361) (2,829)
B %5 B ) Profit before taxation 145,149 110,386 94,613 119,808 92,989
FTiSHi Income tax (21,307) (17.117) (14,591) (18,781) (8,320)
VINNEY- i g Profit attributable to
FEAE T equity shareholders
of the Company 123,842 93,269 80,022 101,027 84,669
EERERE : Assets and liabilities:
BEEEE Fixed assets 400,039 398,892 307,598 306,952 277,407
& 7E & E R TR R Prepayment for
fixed assets - - 3,683 - -
EES Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
EfNHE&ZE Rental deposits paid 42,245 40,861 38,742 29,261 31,897
EthemEE Other financial asset 2,334 2,341 2,341 39,345 40,439
EETRIBEE Deferred tax assets 663 37 35 25 438
RBEE Current assets 334,629 278,613 248,928 248,693 226,546
EEHAE Total assets 780,911 721,745 602,328 625,277 577,778
RBEE Current liabilities (250,583) (240,315) (202,436) (232,061) (218,468)
IEmBaE Non-current liabilities (62,601) (68,840) (25,002) (23,263) (25,478)
EEFE Net assets 467,727 412,590 374,890 369,953 333,832
KEEBERAT

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ﬁﬂ:

HE_ZZ ) \F=ZA=+—HIEFENESR
SERCHEERAENIARREERUER
HEER) A8 EZE_22NAF=A=+
—RIEFERARANTIHRS R - ZETHS
BIAEARTERERRELZFHOEE -

AW B S EBEFENGRBURAMLL
BRGLIFNERAT

BTEKEAREB)ESRIMBERENT
B——ERAHMFIREREEGROE
HEXNSE]l RZE-—ZF=A=+—
B - ZEZAF=ZA=1+—HNOETER
5,686,000t }5,670,0007C B M 3Em BN & &
EFERATHEE  URAEE—_ZT——
F=ZRA=t+—HILFEMRANIIHRA -

AW B S EBEFENGERBURAMLL
BRGLIFNERAT

notes:

1.

Coupon expenses for the year ended 31 March 2008 has been re-
classified from cost of sales to turnover (as deductions) to conform
with the presentation adopted for the year ended 31 March
2009. The revised presentation reflects better the nature of these
transactions.

However, it is not practicable to reclassify the balances of earlier
years for comparison purposes.

Bank loans of $5,686,000 as at 31 March 2010 and $5,670,000 as
at 31 March 2009 have been re-classified from non-current liabilities
to current liabilities to conform with the presentation adopted for
the year ended 31 March 2011 in order to comply with Hong Kong
Interpretation 5, Presentation of financial statements — classification
by the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand
clause.

However, it is not practicable to reclassify the balances of earlier
years for comparison purposes.

;¥ X K 4 X 4 ¥
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AEBFOREDE

Investment Properties Held by the Group
WoT——#=A=+—8
At 31 March 2011

1o B BERR HEH
Location Existing use Term of lease

A BRI

il

& 35 A

BPEER B

£51036% 104055 7 46 SE t Hf
Shop Unit Nos. 1036-1040 Shops Medium-term
on Level 2,

Lowu Commercial Plaza,

Guangchang South Road,

Luohu District,

Shenzhen,

PRC

R

e

BT HBE62ET705

EXAE

ABE14EAT RA2 BRI A K

3EAIMKELL

L5~ L6~ L1 R3S EEIREAL BEMREM 1 &f
Units A1 and A2 on Warehouses and Medium-term
14th Floor of Block A, and car parking

Private Car Parking Space Nos. A3 and spaces

Lorry Parking Space Nos. L5, L6, L11 and L31

on 3rd Floor,

Po Yip Building,

Nos. 62-70 Texaco Road,

Tsuen Wan,

New Territories

RPEEEBRAF
1 40 FAIRWOOD HOtDINGS LIMITED X ‘%\ %’ x ﬁ + )
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